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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED 

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the “Investment Manager”) 

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate 

Trust) 

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 

Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“the REIT”), and its subsidiaries (the 

REIT and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), (“the Condensed Consolidated 

Interim Financial Statements”) which comprise of the following: 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income) for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the quarter and 

half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity 

for the half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year ended 

September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Brookfield 

India Real Estate Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the quarter and half year 

ended September 30, 2022; and 

• summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes 

 

These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are being submitted by the 

REIT pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines 

and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 

December 29, 2016 (the “REIT regulations”). 

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 

Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, 

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the REIT Regulations; Indian 

Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”), prescribed under Rule 

2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with 

the REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed 

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

3. We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in 

accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim 

Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information 

consists of making inquiries, primarily of Investment Manager’s personnel responsible for 
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financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.  A 

review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards 

on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we 

would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements includes the financial information 

of the following entities: 

 

Sr. No. Name of the entities 

A Parent entity 

1 Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

  

B Subsidiaries 

1 Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 

2 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 

3 Festus Properties Private Limited 

4 Seaview Developers Private Limited 

5 Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

5. Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 

the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, have not been 

prepared in accordance with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34, prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) 

of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the 

REIT Regulations. 

Emphasis of matter 

 

6. We draw attention to Note 15(a)(i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as 

“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

 

 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

      Chartered Accountants 

           (Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N) 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                            Anand Subramanian 

                                          Partner 

                                                                    (Membership No. 110815) 

                                            (UDIN:22110815BCIXYM9001) 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: November 7, 2022 

 



Brookfield India Rea l Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(A ll amounts arc in Rupees mill ions un less othcnvisc stated) 

Condensed Conso lidated Ba lance Sheet 

Pa rt icu la rs 

ASSETS 
Non-Current assets 
Property, plant and equ ipment 
Investment property 
Investment property under development 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 
-Other financia l assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Non-current tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Tota l non-cu rrent assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Trade receivables 
-Cash and cash equivalents 
-Other bank balances 

-Loans 
-Other financ ial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non current liabili ties 
Financial liabi lities 
-Borrowings 
-Lease liabilities 
-Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other non-current liabi lities 
Tota l non-cu rrent liabilities 

Note 

3 
4 
4 

3 

5 
6 
7 

8 

9 
10 
11 
12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 

18 
19 
20 

As at Asal 
30 September 2022 31 March 2022 

(Unaud ited) (Aud ited) 

166 03 154.90 
134,708.26 134,419.98 

1,279.28 1,745.46 
0.01 0.13 

964.24 1,437.33 
3,620.88 3,755.46 
2,333.63 2,416.27 

136.98 175.54 
143,209.31 144, 105.07 

313.07 224.88 
2,296.90 2,043.65 

500.03 506.49 

1,479.54 755.3 1 
375.70 222.58 

4,965.24 3,752.91 
148,174.55 147,857.98 

88,289.05 89,867.3 1 
(2,145.12) ( 1,046.38) 
86,143.93 88,820.93 

52,566.46 50,993.53 
246.39 220.44 

1,838.20 1,329.30 
18.28 18.9 1 

782.53 645 .93 
55,451.86 53,208. 11 



Urooklield India Rut Eslolc Trusl 
Condensed Consolida1td Financi,il Slalemenls 
(All .amounl'-i nrc in Rupees millions unlei;!i othcn\'isc stated) 

Condensed Consolidnlcd Balance Sheol 

Parli<ulars 

Currcnl liobililics 
Fimrncial liabilities 
-Borrowinss 
-L:asc liabilities 
-Trade payables 

Tola I o~lstanding dues or micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Total outslanding dues or creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

-Other rinanciol liabilities 
Provisions 
Olher current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Total current liabilities 
Total liobllilics 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounting politics 

Nole 

21 

22 

23 
24 
25 
26 

Asal 
JO Se11lembcr 2022 

(Unaudited) 

615.30 
579.53 

0.76 

673.93 

4,198.76 
10.02 

378.75 
121.71 

6,578.76 
62,030.62 

148,174.55 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

(Audiltd) 

661.81 
27.73 

17.34 

620.17 

4,061.26 
7.32 

312.67 
120.64 

5,828.94 
59,037.05 

147,857.98 

The accompanyinc notes from I lo 50 form an intewal part or these Condensed 
Consolidarcd Financial St:ilcmcnts. 

As per our report of C\'cn date allnchcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Regis1ra1io11 No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf or the Board of Directors or 
Brookprop Man•gemcnl Services Prn·ate Limilro 
(as Manager lo the Brookfield India REIT) 

~v-
AnkurGup•• 
Dircclor 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Sanjccv Kumar Sharmn 
Chier Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggara·•I 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 



Brookfield lndl1 Rt1I E1111e Tnul 
Condnsed Conselld■ted Fia■ aci■ I Statements 
(All amounts ■ re In R•PffS mlllloH unleu olllenrite 1llled) 

Con, olidattd Stttemen.t of Profit ■nd Len 
P■rtlcul■ rs Note For Ille qa■ rter ended For the quarter ended For Ille qu1rter eoded For Ille h■lf year ended 

30 Soptember 2011 
(lln1udlted) 

Income ■ad gal■ 1 

Revenue from op<ntions 27 ),0)6.02 
Other income 28 80.40 

Total Incom e 3,116.41 

E:1penses and loues 
Cost ofmatenal consumed 29 11.32 
Employee benefit., expenses 30 80.00 
Financ.e cosu 31 1,082.08 
Depreciation and amortiDti.on expense..s 32 637.57 
Investment management fees 20.26 
Veluatioo ocperuel 4.39 
T~tce(ecs 0.74 
Other e,cpcmcs 33 854.67 

Total expenses 1,691.03 

Profit before In com c tu. 415.39 

T■x apense: 34 
Curmit tax 

-ror curmu period 9.92 
-ror earlier year3 

Defemd tax charge/ (aedit) 148.35 
TH. a:pen,e (or tbe ptriod/ yar 15!.27 

Profit for the period/ yur •Rer income t■1. 267.11 

Other co1nprehtn1iYe lnt1Jme 
Items that will not be reclUJilied to profit or loss 
• Remeuuremem of defined benefit obligations 0.25 
- Income tax related to items that will not be reclwified to profit or 1cm [O.Oll 
Other camprdle1uln Income rar the peried/:,eu, ad dtu: 0.24 

Total comprehensive income ror the period/year 267.36 

E■mlnp ptt unit 40 
Basic 0.80 
Diluted 0.80 

Significant accounting policies 2 

The accompanying notes from I to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

~ per our report or even date an.ached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountant., 

Finn Regi,lr.ltion No.: 01512SN 

Anand Subramanian 
Pormer 
Membenhip No: 11081 S 
Place: Bengsluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

30 Jnne 1011 
(lln1ndlted) 

2,910.40 
97.29 

3,007.69 

7.03 
84.05 

958.61 
690.98 

20.32 
1.67 
0.74 

786.35 

2,549.75 

457.94 

11.87 
(11.38) 
!13.98) 
(13.49) 

471.43 

0.77 
[0.181 

0.59 

4n.02 

1.41 
1.41 

30 Septnnber 1011 30 September 1011 
(lln1udlted) (lluudked) 

2,117.08 5,946.42 
30.93 177.69 

2,148.01 6, llUI 

4.72 18.35 
52.46 164.05 

425.47 2,040.69 
471.13 1,3211.55 

24.92 40.58 
2.99 6.06 
0.74 1.48 

532,23 1,641.02 

1,514.66 5,240.78 

633.35 883.33 

7.41 21.79 
(11.38) 

!56.88) 134.37 
(4M7) 144.78 

681.81 738.55 

0,51 1.02 
[0.16l io.191 
8.35 0.83 

683.17 739.38 

2.25 2.20 
2.25 2.20 

For and on behalf or the Board or DRCtors of 
Brookprop Mana1emeat Senices Private Limited 

(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~e 
Dir<etor 

("'.1 e'Cc,'7 ;W _,p 
Alok Aggarwal 
Chief Executive Officer 
PJ■ce : Mumbai DIN No. 08687570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Date: 07 November 2022 

For Ille b ■lryur ended For the h1lry<1r ended For Ille yur ended 
31 Morch 2011 

(lln1udlted) 

4,460.02 
157.36 

4,617.38 

10.42 
93.31 

1,236.08 
1,157.49 

JS.JO 
7.67 
1.47 

1,178.25 

3,719.99 

897.39 

19.90 
(3.81) 

!160.39) 
(144.38) 

1,041.69 

(0.0J) 
0,06 
O.OJ 

I 041.72 

3,30 
3,30 

c~ 
S■njeev Kumar Sh■rma 
Chic£ Fimncia! Officer 
Place: Mt.mbai 
Dote: 07 November 2022 

30 September2011 
(Unaudited) 

4,307.89 
66.87 

4,374.76 

13.60 
103.54 
844.61 
927.28 

45.91 
3.93 
1.48 

1,089.81 

3,030.16 

1~44.60 

8.06 

(84,62) 
(76.56) 

1,411.16 

1.22 
[0,261 
0.96 

1411.11 

4,69 
4.69 

o\<.fiele1 - /, "o-
~ 

.(<s_ (!J 
. :;, )JJ 

-:2 
84B"\s'Q 

31 Moreb 2012 
(Audited) 

8,767.91 
224.23 

8,991.14 

24.02 
196.85 

2,080.69 
2,084.77 

81.21 
11.60 
2.95 

2,268.06 

6,750.15 

1~41.99 

27.96 
(3.81) 

!745.01) 
(110.86) 

2,461.115 

1.19 
[0.201 
0.99 

2463.84 

7.97 
7.97 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condennd Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees Millions unless otherwise stated) 

Condeiued Coiuolidated Statement of Cub Flows 

Particulars 

Cub flows from operating activitit.11 : 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments far : 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Allowance for expected credit loss 
Interest income on fixed deposit 
Deferred income amortization 
Credit impaired 
Restricted Stock Units 
Finance cost 
Interest income on security deposit 
Fe.ir value gain on income support 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 

Movement in working capital: 
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non current assets 
Decrease/(lncrease) in current and non current financial assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in current and non current financial liabi lities 
Increase in other current and non current liabilities 
Cub generated from operating activities 
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) 

Net cub generated from operating activitie., (A) 

Cub flows from investing activities : 
Expenditure incurred on investment property 
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, including directly attributable expenses 
Fixed deposits matured# 
Fix~d deposits made# 
Interest received on fixed deposits 
Interest received on security deposit 
Net cu b und in investing activ ities (B) 

Cub flows (rum finencing activities : 
Fine.nee cost paid 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 
Repayment of Lease liabilities 
Repayment of long-term borrowings 
Proceeds from issue of Units 
Expense incurred towards Initial public offerings 
Expense incurred towards preferential allotment 
Distribution to unitholders 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activitiea (q 

Net increa.se/(decrcaae) in cuh and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

For the quarter ended 
30 September 2022 

(Unaudited) 

425.39 

637.57 
2.43 

(23 .75) 
(45.73) 

8.84 
0.44 

1,082.08 
(9.55) 

(36.19) 
2,041.53 

(107.40) 
21.08 

194.88 
135.82 

2,285.91 
(35.69) 

2,250.22 

(274.60) 
(9.55) 

227 .56 
(207.92) 

40.24 
9.55 

(214.72) 

(1,031.99) 
1,070.02 

(11.02) 
(141.70) 

(1,707.68) 

(1,822.37} 

213.13 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
30 June 2022 30 September 2021 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

457.94 633 .35 

690.98 471.13 
6.23 0.25 

(20.24) (20.27) 
(53.90) (38.12) 

0.58 5.11 
1.07 

958.61 425.47 
(14.09) (6.26) 
(23.90) 

2,003.28 1,470.66 

46.69 (14.27) 

43.34 41.17 

163.85 (211.17) 

96.62 68.26 
2,353.78 1,354.65 

108.98 (39.00) 
2,462.76 1,315.65 

(357.97) (121.41) 
(I 1.92) (19.45) 

( I 1.52) 
8.27 82.68 

(21.52) (83 .19) 

17.22 18.83 

14.09 6.26 
(363.35) (116.28) 

(918.17) (388.16) 
749.99 500.00 
(17.65) (11.02) 

(160.63) 

(18.08) 
(4.00) 

(1 ,708.83) (1,816.81) 

(2,059.29} !1,734.!!1) 

40.12 (534.70) 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the year ended 
30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2021 31 March 2022 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

883.33 897 .39 1,344.60 2,241.99 

1,328.55 1,157.49 927.28 2,084.77 
8.66 9.83 0.25 10.08 

(43 .99) (35.07) (35.98) (71.05) 
(99.63) (84.80) (16.26) (161.06) 

9.42 2.95 7.82 10.77 
1.5 1 0.55 0.55 

2,040.69 1,236.08 844.61 2,080.69 
(23.64) (9.19) (19.19) (28.38) 
(60.09) (3 1.58) (31.58) 

4,044.81 3,143.64 2,993.13 6,136, 78 

(60.71) (31.31) (3.57) (34.88) 
64.42 91.59 (48.70) 42.89 

358.73 140.87 (278.92) (138.05) 
232.44 66.73 160.58 227.31 

4,639.69 3,411.52 2,822.52 6,234.05 
73.29 (24.79) (150.06) (174.85) 

4,712.98 3,386.73 2,672.46 6,059.20 

(632.57) (627.97) (245.36) (873.33) 
(21.47) (12.36) (30.06) (42.42) 
(11.52) (13,258.02) (13,258.02) 
235.83 91.74 181.55 273 .29 

(229.44) (131.09) (92.47) (223 .56) 
57.46 31.04 30.91 61.95 
23 .64 9.19 19.19 28.38 

(578.07) (13,897.47) (136.24) (14,033.71) 

(1,950.16) (1 ,381.87) (770.73) (2,152.60) 
1,820.01 15,259.99 650.00 15,909.99 

(28.67) (11.02) (I 1.02) 
(302.33) (5,627.38) (5,627.38) 

4,949.83 4,949.83 
(225.74) (976.23) (1 ,201.97) 

(4.00) (44.92) (44.92) 
p,416.51) (3,330.72) (1,816.81) (5,147 .53) 

(3,881.6~ 9,599.19 !2,924.79) 6,674,40 

253.25 (911.54) (388.57) (1,300.11) 

w <_?:::. 

* ~ 

~" ... <q;. !J!~ 
'../. e re-1,S~ 



Brookfield India Ru.I Est ■te Tr111t 
Condcnsc-d Coatolidated Financial StatemcnlJ 
(All amounts are in Rupee.s Millions unless otherNise stated) 

Coademtd Coa.Jolldated St■temcnt of Cub Flows 

Particulars 

CaJb. and cuh equiv■leot1 at the beginning orthe period/ year 
Cub and c•th equivalent, ■cquirtd due to aucl acqubition: 

CHb ■ nd cub equiv■lents 11 the end ofthe period/year (rder note 10) 

ComponenlJ of cuh and tub equiv■lenu 1t tbt end ortbe ptrlod/ yur 
Balances with bank, 
- in current account 
• in deposil account 
- in c.,crow account 

# Represents fixed depositl with original maturity or more th.an l months. 

Note.s : 

For the q111r1er ended 
JD Soplomb,r 2022 

(1Jnauditodl 

2,D83.77 

l,l96.9D 

128.90 
2,168.00 

2,1_96.90 

For tbe q11uter ended 
JD Jun, lOll 
(1Jnou~te_d) 

l,D43.65 

2,083.77 

115.76 
1,968.01 

21083.77 

Fer the quarter ended 
JD Soptombor lDll 

(Unoudilodl 

J,JDI.Jl 

2,166.62 

178.6S 
2,437.0D 

150.97 

k766.6l 

For the hal(ye■r ended 
JD Soplombor lOll 

(1Jn ■ u!itod) 

2,043.65 

l.296.90 

128.90 
2,168.00 

2.296.90 

For the h■lfyear ended 
JI Marth lDll 

(IJnaudito_d) 

2,766.62 

118.57 

l,IMJ.65 

193.6S 
1,SS0.00 

zD43.65 

I. The c1Jh flow statement hu been prep11ed in accordance with •tndirecl Melhod• u set out in Indian Accounlins Standud .7 : •statement on Cash Flows'. 

2. Non<l!lh investing 1ctivitiu disclmed in other note, is towards partial senJement on assets acquisition orSDPL Noida on 24 January 2022 through the issue or units (refer note 44(ii)). 

Sianificant accountins policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes &om I lo 50 form an integral part orthese Condmsed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

A:s per our report of even dale attach, ;; 

For DF.LOITIE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chanered Accountants 
Firm Rogistrllion No.: 01S12SN 

An■nd S11br■m1niaa 
Partno, 

Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For ■nd on be&alr of the Board of Direttars of 
Broakprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to th, BrookJi,ld India REIT) 

y .--- c-::?ecc7:?7 -Y 
J_ -~ Ankur Gupt■ Alok An■rw■I r . · Director Chief Executive Officer 

DIN No. 08687570 Place: Mumba.i 
Place: Mumbai Date: 07 November 2022 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For tb, h■ICyur cndod 
JD Sopt,mbor lOll 

(1Jnoudltodl 

3,155.19 

2,766.62 

178.65 
2,437.00 

150.97 
k766.6l 

For the ye■ r uded 
31 March 1022 

(Audited) 

3,155.19 
118.57 

2,043.65 

193.6S 
1,850.00 

21043.65 

<,.' 

c ---i~ ~<Q~-✓-~ A <-
~ ,, 
u' ' 

S■njecv Kumar Sharma ..,.,/ ~ 
Chier Financial Officer 1 ...... .,.., , ~ 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 



Brookfield Indio Rcal Eslalc Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial SMemenlS 
(All amounts arr in Rupees million unless 01hcn,·isc s1ntctl) 

Com.lensed Consolidnlcd Statement ofChilngcs in llnilhoh.lcr's Equity 

(a) Unit Capital 
Balance•• on 01 A11ril 2021 
01unecs in unit c.apilal durinJ? the 1,rcviou!'i year: 
Less: Distribulion lo Unilholders for the quarter ended JO June 20211/ 
Less: Distribulion to Unilholders for the qu>rter ended JO September 2021# 
Less: Dist1ibution to Uni1holders for the quaner ended JI December 202111 
Add: Rcvc~I of issue expenses no longer 1>-1yablc 
Add: UnilS issued during the year (refer note 15) 
Less: Expense incurred 1owards preferential allo1mc111 
Balance al lhe end of the current reporting year 31 March 2022 
Balance as on 01 April 2022 
Chan)!CS in unit c:111ital durinl?, the current J>eriod: 
Less: Dis1ribution to Unilholders for lhc quarter ended 31 March 2022# 
Less: Dislribution to Uni1holders for the quancr ended JO June 2022# 
Balance at the end of the currenl re1>0rling period 30 Seplcmber 2022 

(b) Other equily 

Par1itulars 

Balance•• on 01 April 2021 
Add: Profit for the vear euded 31 March 2022 
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Morch 2022 

Add: Tot:11 Comr>rchcnsivc Income ror Che nrcvious }'car 
Less: Distribu1ion to Unitholders for lhc auartcr ended 30 June 20211/ 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021/1 
l..css: Di"1ribution to Unitholders for the auarter ended 31 December 2021 # 
Add: Res1ric1cd Stock Units 
llalanceas al 31 Mnch 2022 
Balance as on OI April 2022 
Add: Profit for tl1c half year ended 30 September 2022 

Add: Other comprehensive income for the half year ended 30 Scotcmbcr 2022 
Add: Tot!II Comnrchcnsivc lncon,e for the currcnf halrye:u 
l..css: Dis1ribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022# 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the anarler ended 30 June 2022# 
Add: Restricted Stock Units 

Balance•• at 30 September 2022 

Unit in Nos. Amounl 

302,801,601 81,774.78 

(297.05) 
(605.60) 
(481.45) 

25.55 
32,285.472 9,500.00 

(48.92) 
335,087,073 89,867.31 

335,087,073 89,867.31 

(720.44) 
(857.82) 

335,087,073 118,289.05 

Ret:iincd earnings 

252.75 
2.462.85 

0.99 
2,463.84 

(1,519.76) 
(1,211.21) 
(1,032.55) 

0 .55 
(1,046.38) 

(1,046.38) 

738.55 
0.83 

739.38 
(988.51) 

(851.12) 
I.SI 

(2,145.12) 

#The distribulions made by Trust lo its Unilholders ore based on 1he Nel Dislributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brooktteld India REIT under lhc REIT Regulations. 

Sii;nificanl accounting policies (refer no1c 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 50 fonn an inlcb-ral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of C\'cn d.11c attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chancred AccountanlS 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subr,:un~nian 
Panncr 
Mcmbcrsl1ip No: 11081 5 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookpro11 Management Services Priv•le Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~---
~rGupla 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Sanjcev Kumar Sharma 
O,ief Financjal Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggam·nl 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
IJate: 07 November 2022 



Drookndd lndla Rral f'.slalc Tn1SI 
CondcnKd Consolid:111rd Fin:tin(lal S1a1cmcn1s 
(All amounts an! in Rupees mllllons unlr,s 01hcrwi,c U:\l«fl 

S1a1m1cn1 or Net A1st.1, al Fair V:alm: 
S.No r.u1icubrs As al .lD Seplc:mbcr 2011 A1 al JI l\brch 2011 

A 
D 
C 
D 
E 

Ane11 
Lubili1ies 
Ncl Ass:c1s ( A-0 ► 
No. or units 
NAV ~r uoil (OD) 

"1nsurcmcnl of rair values 

Rook Value Fair nluc 
1a,t 7-I .Sj 17-1.'XJS.•JI 
(<,l .0:\0.l,l) (62 .0l0.62) 
16,l~J.91 IIJ.875.19 

llS.017.073 33i.017.073 
157.H .Jl6.JiS 

llook Value 
lol7,IU7.911 
(S'J.037.llS) 
11,1110.93 

JJS.017 .073 
265.07 

Fair value 
170,P.91 .Sol (rder nolc l below) 
(59.0J7.0S) 
111.854.-49 

JJi .017.073 
Jl.J.11 

The~, ,·a!ue or in,·ct1n1cn1 propcr1h:s and inves1nwnt proper~· under dc,·clopmcut h~ b«n dclermincd ti,· indcpcnden l c..,:lema! rcgist~rcd property ,·alucts. h:n·in; :approprfa1cly recognized profC5Wonal 
qualiricalions and rcccnl experience in 1he loca1ion ;rid u1.1.,:,ory ofll1c propcrlics bcins ulucd. 

Valu~ion 1cdinique 
T11c f;Mr ,-atue mc.isuremcnl of1he in,·cs1mcn1 properties :ind inn:tln)Cffl propcny under dcrclopmenl h:zs been ~tcgorizcd :ti a Lc,·cl l fair 1·~uc based on lhe inpu1s 10 lhc 1·alu:ation 1cchniquc used. 
The ,·ahK1s ha,·c follo"ed a discounlcd c.:tSh now method. The discounted c:ash now method considers lhc prescnl ,·.lluc ofncl c;ish ncw5 IO be gencr:alcd r,om 1he rcspec:1i1·c propcnics. taL:inc into .xcounl 
1hc exp«I~ rental cro,nh r;uc, ,·~c,.· pi:riod. occup:wic,· rah!, .:1rcra~c sq. n. 1m1 aid lc:isc inccn1h·c casls . Th~ cxpeclcd nc1 c~h nows :ire discounlcd usin£ lhc risL: adjuslcd discoun1 r.ucs. Amon.: olhcr 
fac1ors, lhc discoun1 uuc cs1ima1ion considers the qunlhy of:,, buildin& and i11 loa1ion (r,rimc ,., second:wy), lcn:inl credi1 qu:iJil)". le~ 1crnis aid in,·es10,s tXJh,'-Ctcd rel urn. 

For r;ur ulu:uion or lin:s1ci:a.l .isscls and fma1cial liabilities rere.- no1c 37. 

~ 
I. Candor Kolbi:i b:u plans lo dc-noli(\' a por1ion of iu SEZ inlo non SEZ. The dcnotification "ill be 1:11.tn up prior 10 lht cons I ruction comnicnccm1.."fll and is procedur31 in nature. 1 lcnce, lhc fa.ir ,·:aiu.11ion 
ofsud1 SEZ po11ion h:i.s lh.'l:n c:onipu!cd by 1he ,·a!ucrs :1.Ssumin, non rr llSC. 

2. rrojccl \\isc bri:31: ur, of F:air 1·:lluc or Assi:ts : 

As .al JO Se 1cm her 1022 

Enlily ,uuJ Pro~rty uanic 

C:indor Koll.nta One Hi-Tech Structures P.1fra1c Limilcd 
Sh.w1liniL:c1.1n Propcnics Pri,·at~ Limi1cd 
Festus Properties rrh-.11~ Limited 
Sca,·ie,,· Oc,·clor,«s r,i,--:11e Limit~d 
C;indor India Office: r.111.s 11rl\'Atc Lin1i1cd 
0100H1cld lndi;i Rc31 Es1.:i.1c Trust 

f.air uh.e ef lnvc1hncnt 
prapcr1y .and lnvcstmml 

propcny under 
dcvclopmcnl 

72.7i0.92 
22.2%.)1 
27.HN .OO 
-10,%1}.22 

163-'6'-45 

Olhcr nscts at book Totalusclt 
value 

-l ,o&7S .fiS 77.22li .S7 
KlJ.OX 2J . lol9.3'.I 

1,697.117 29,2,U 87 
2.1,1.01 U.127 .2) 

9?.20 IJ9.20 

1.1!7.Gl l,lj7 .M 

11~41.-46 17-4 ,905.91 

•include, Rs . 8~5.S4 millions (nel of :ldn,nccofR.5. l?.9tl million) offin;ancc 1cc:<iH1blc relatin,: 10 income suppon :y,d conapondin~ amount hns been reduced fromolher .usclS. 

As at JI Marth 2022 
Entity and Property n:m1c 

C:widor Koll.ala One Hi-Tech Struc1u11:s Pri,·a1c l.in1i1i:d 
Sh:1n1inil:ct::an Propcnics Pri,·atc Lin1i1cd 
Festus P1opcnii:s rri,·atc Limi1cd 
ScJ,·icw Dcn:lopers P1i\'alc Lim11ed 
Candor India Office P.vl:s Pri,·aic Lin1i1cd 
Urool:fidd India Rc:ll Estate Tnnl 

Fair v.al»c or lnvcstNtcnl 
propt""rty and lnvc,lmtul 

property •ndcr 
dcvclopn1cnl 

70.KOl,.i) 
21,)29.32 
27.lSUIO 
40,1X17.ll 

!60,d6J .IJ 

Olhcr a.sets al book To1al1ssct1 
•aluc 

l.776.76 74.lll.29 
751 .C.9 22,011.01 

1.972.85 29.lJO.IIS 
1.1111.Cil 0 ,015 .89 

107.oll I07.41 
1.110).01) 1.103.0'} 

IO~J0.41 170~9l.54 

•Jncl udci Rs . 1.162.1 J millions o(fin:v1cc rceci,·,1,blc rcl,1,1in~ 10 income suppon .ind corrcspandin,: arnounl h:a.s bc-c:n reduced from 01hcr .usc1s 

a Fil.ir nducs or assets m disclosed :abo\"C arc the fair ,.~ui:s 0(1hc rot.al .uscls o(:all SPVs ias included in lhc Condensed Consolidoucd Finaici31 SbtcmcnlS 

b. f-.iir 1·:alucs o(in,·cslmcnt propcll)' :wid in,·e51n1011 r,rop:ny under dc,·clopmtnl m :,r JU Scplcmber l0l2 :,,nd JI 1'b,d1 2021 as disc.loscd ;it,o,·c arc solclr b:lscd on 1he fair ,·:aluation rqiorl of1hc 
indcpcndcnl C.'•ilcm:il rci:istercd ,·:ilu.:r :ip[X>intcd under 1hc Rl::IT Rcgul:11ions. 

Sip,ifianl :.ccoun1ing policies (,~re, noll: l) 

The 3ecomp:1.1yinc no1cs from I lo SO fom11111 int.:irnl pan of1licsc Condensed Consolidllcd Fin:a,icial S1a1cmcnts. 

As pc:rour rcpon orc,·cn cb1e~1xhcd 

For DELOITTE IIASKIN5 & SELLS 

Ch:in~r.'!d Accou01:anlS 
Firm Rcgi111.s1ion No.· 01 jlHN 

Anand Subnniani:111 
P.lllner 
Membership No: I I Uk IS 
rlace: Dcnc:lluru 
D:aic: 07 NoH?mbcr 2022 

For .-..don bcb;ilf o(lhc Ooad or Di1cclors or 
lrookprop lbnaecmcnl SenitcS Private Limited 
(35 M:11u1gl!t 10 1hc 81Ul'>l.ficld lndi:a REIT) 

1~--
j--J;;;ur Gup11 

Dir«1or 
DIN No. OU,117570 
Place: M11111b.ai 
0,1,1c· 07 Non:mbcr 2022 

Sanjcn l\umarSharm:r. 
Chier Financial Officer 
rtxc: M11n1b:li 
0:11c: 07 No,·cnibcr l022 

Alok Aecanul 
ChicrE!l:ccu1i,·c Officer 
Pl:w:c:Mumb3i 
0.i&e: 07 No,·cmber 2022 



Brooklicld lndi:t Rul ts1:llc Trnsl 
Cond,nstd Comi:olidalrd Financial St:ttcmcnls 
(All ::rimo11nls arc in Ruprcs niillions unless olhr"'·isc sl:rilrd) 

SU,ltmcnl or Total Reh1rn al Fair Valu~ 

S.No rarlic:ulars 

A Total cnmprchcnsi,·c Income 

B Add/(Lcss) : Changes in fai, \':llue 1101 rccoi;11i1.i;:d 

•ln\·cs1men1 Propcny 

C(A+B) Total Rrlurn 

For 1hr h:11fyrarcm.ltd 
JO Sr1,1c:mbcr 2022 

139.JB 

J.JRl.21 

4,120.59 

For ll1t h::tlf )'t.ar ended Far the l111lr )'tar cndrd For the ,·car cndtd 
31 Much 2022 30 Scplc111bcr 2021 31 ~lnrth 2022 

1,041 72 1,422.12 2.46].84 

4,555.46 2,524 .12 7,079.58 

5,597.18 J,94G.24 9S4J.4l 

The REIT acquired SPVs on 6 Fcbnmy 2021 and 24 January 2022 as fully described in Note I. In 1hc abo~'c :na1cmcn1. changes in (.1ir \"i1lue (or the half year ended 30 Scplembcr 2022, 31 M:uch 2022 
and JO September 2021 and year ended 31 March 2022 has been computed based on 1hc difference in fair \lalucs of in,·cstmcnl propcr1ics and in\'Utmcnt properly undr.r development as 11 30 Seplcmbcr 

2022, 31 March 2022, JO September 2021 :ind JI M:ireh 2022 as comr,:irc:d \Yi1h 1hc values :is al JI M::irch 2022, JO September 2021. JI March 2021 and JI March 2021 resrectivcly :ilicr .adjus1inc 
change in book value ofinn:slmcnl propenics .and invcslmcnt propcny under dc\'clopmcnt . The fair values of 1hc aforementioned assets as al JO September 2022, JI March 2022 and JO Scplembcr 2021 
.arc s:olcly based on thc,·alu;i\ion rcpon oflhc independent regincred valuer ilppointed under the REIT Rcgulillions . 

Signific:.nl accounling policies (refer nolc 2) 

The accompan)•ins nolc:s from I 10 SO form an inlegral pan of1hcsi: Condensed Consolid,ucd Financial S1:ncmenls . 

As per our rcp011 or even c..latc auachcd 

For DELOITTE 11/\SKINS & SELLS 
Chanercd Ar.countants 
Firm Rcgislration No. : 015125N 

Anand SubranuinLan 
Panncr 
Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

I 
For .and on bchalfoflhc Doard ofDircclOfS of 

Drookprop M:uue,cmcnt Scn•icts rrinlc Limited 
(as Mnnagcr 10 1hc Brooldicld India REIT) 

~ 
1-,P---

Ankur Gupl:i 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 

Dale: 07 November 2022 

SanjHiv Kunuar Sharma 
Chief Fin:1nci1l Officer 
Place: Mumb1i 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok A,:~arw;;il 

Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 
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Drookficld lndi■ Rc:,I Eslalc Trusl 

Condcnnd Consolid:at<d Financi:11 S1atemcnts 
(All :amouncs arc in Rupees million unless otlltr\t·in sbll'd) 

Addilion:il disclosures as required b)' raragrar,h, 10 SEDI circ1du No. CIR/ll\lD/Dfll.t6/2016 

Nd Distrib1111blc Cul1 Flo"'s (NDCF) punuanl to ,:11idnncc under l'11raJ:raph 610 SEUI circulu No. CIHJll\1D/UF/146/2016 
(ii) Calc11la1ion orncl diJlribulablc cash no"·s al ucl1 Assd srv 

For the quutcr end«I .30 ~plembcr 2022 

Sr. No. r:arlkulars 

I Profil / (Loss) aflu 1:11: as per sralcmcnt or ,,roril ;:md loss (standalone) (A) 

Adjuslmcnl 
2 Add: Dcprccia1ion . .in1ortiz.a1ion and impairmcn1 -as per St.:ncmcnl or profit and loss 

3 Add/(Lcss): Any other item or non-cuh expense/ non -cash income (net of nctuol cash flows for 1hcsc 

i1cms), as may be deemed necessary by 1he M:magcr . 

For example. IR)' dc:crc:,,sc/ increase in carryins amount or an assel or or a liabilily rccosnizcd in stalcmcnt 
orpror1t nnd Jos!.lincomc and expenditure on mcasun:mcnt orthc asset or the: liability al r.1ir value. inlcn:st 
cost as per effective inlcrcSI ntc method, dercncd 1:i.x, lease rcnls recognized on a s1raight line basis, c:lc. 

4 Add/less : Loss/sain on sale. 1ransfcr/ disposal/ liquid;,1ion or rcal cs1a1c asscls, invcs1mcn1s (including ca5h 

eq11i\0alenls).n1hcrassc1s or sh.arcs orti111crcs1 in Anc l SP Vs. 
5 Add: Proceeds from sale/ liquidalionltransfcr/ disposi'II or real c:sta.tc assets, investments (including ca.sh 

equh•alents), usc\s or slmcs or/ interest in Ancl SPVs, adjusted for 1he following: 
• Applicable capital gains and othcr taxes 
• Related debts settled or due lo be settled from sale procc-cds 

• Any acqullilion 
• Directly attributable transaction cosu 
• Proceeds reinvested or planmd to be reinvested as per REIT ~gulations 
• lnvr.stmcnl in any fomi as permitted under the REIT ~guJa.tiom as may be deemed ncccss;uy by the 

Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real csutc assets, in\·cstmcnts, :1ssc1S or sale of shares or Asset SPVs not 

distributed pursuant lo an i.::1r'licr plan to re-invest as per REIT Rq;ul.1tions , if such procccds arc not 

intended lo be invested subsequently. 
7 Add: lnleresl (or olhcr similu pa)mcnts) on Sh:ircholder Dcbt (or on debentures or 01hcr instruments held 

by the Brookr1cld REIT) charged/ dcbi1ed lo 1he stnlemcnl ofprof11 ind loss . 
8 Add/(Less) : Other adjuslmcnls, including but no1 limited lo ncl chanscs in sccurily dCposils, working 

capital, dcrc:rrcdl11rcp.iid income or dcfcirc:d/ prcr,.iid expenditure, etc. 
9 Less: Any expcnsc in the nalurc of capital expenditure including capi1:1liz.cd intcrcs1 !hereon (lo 1l1c p:inics 

otJ1er 1han Brookf,cld REIT), capi1aliztd ovcrhcads. c1c. 

10 Add/(Lcss): Ncl deb! (rcp.iymcnlY drawdown/ (redemption) or preference sharcs/ dcbcnlun:s/ any olhcr 
such ins1rumcn1/ premiun\Slaccrucd interest/ any other OOligations/ li:1bilitics elc. , to panics other 1han 

Brookfield REIT, as ,nay be decmcd ncccss.iry by the Man:Jger, 
11 Add : Cash in0ows in rcla1ion tu equity/ non-refundable ad\·anccs, cit. 

12 Less: Any di,·idcnds on or proceeds from rcp.1ymcnts or redemptions or buy-b:id:s or e.1pit1l ,eduction or 
shares (including compulsory convcnible ins1n1ments), held by .3n)'Onc other lh:rn the Brookfield REIT 
(cilhcr directly or indireclly), i nd nny taxes thereon (including 1111y di\'idcnd distribution tax or buy back 
d istribution tax, clc., if applicable). 

Candor Kol~t11 

(26.8◄) 

102.00 
(3!.56) 

353.22 

123 . 19 

(29.2G) 

358.94 

SPPLNoid:i. 

17.71 

7G.60 
(11.41) 

76.69 

(42 05) 

(39.09) 

100.72 

c1or 
16,15 

0.71 
2.69 

14.23 

(I IG) 

Festus 

(89,21) 

61.51 
14.72 

192.39 

106.J0 

(99.74) 

104.86 

Total :idjuslm~nls (D) 169.5) 161.46 16A7 380,04 
142.69 179.17 33.Jl 290.83 

Signific:int accounting policies (rerct nole 2) 

The accomp.1nying notes from I to SO form an inlcgral part or these Condensed Consolidated Fin:incial S1.1tcmcnts 

As per our report of even date anachcd 

for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Charlcrcd Accoun11nts 

Firm Rcgis1ra1ion No. : 0ISl2SN 

Aund Snbranunian 
Pannc:r 
Mcmlx:nhipNo: 110815 

Nace: Densaluru 
D:11c : 07 November 2022 

For and on bchalro(the Bo.ird or Directors or 

Drookriror, J\l•1t:1Kcmc111 Scrvicu Priv:111c Limited 
(as Manascr 10 lht Brookfield India REIT) 

1~--
~1rGupt.11 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Pfocc: Mumbai 
Date : 07 No,•cmbcr 2022 

Sanjccv K11mar SharlQ 
Chief financial Officer 

Place: Mumbili 
Dale: 07 No,,•cmbcr 2022 

Alok Agcarwal 
ChicfExcculh·c OITiccr 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 07 No\'cmbcr 2022 

SDl'L Noid:i Toul 

(72.92) (15◄ .41) 

138.20 379.02 
(G7.3?) (99.95) 

178.58 800,88 

216,87 -118.54 

(114 .90) (28◄ . 15) 

41.28 605.80 

391.64 1.820.14 
319.72 1.665.73 



D,-ookfitld India Rc•I Estate 1·rusl 
Condensed ConsolidalC'd Fin.1ncial St:1tcmenls 
(Al l amounts ;1n: in Rupec-s mil lion •nltu oll1rrwl$c ,l•tcd) 

Additiona l disclosures u rtquird b)' raracraph 6 to Sl::0 1 circular No. CIRJIJ\1D/DF/1.46/l016 
Net Oistributllblc Cash Flows(NDCF) p11nuant lo J11idantc undtr Pllra,:raph 6 to SEDI circubr No. C IR/IJ\1D/DF/146/2016 
{ii} Cnlcuhltion of nd distribulable cash no"·s at uch Anti SP\' 

For lbc uarltr ended JO Jnnc 2012 
Sr, No, P2rtic11Jus Candor Kol&uta srrL Noid, c1or FcthlS 

I rront I (Lon) •fler tu at ptr U1tcmcnl nf r,roril and lo,;~ (st:and1lonc) (A) (22.88) O.SK "·" (63.77 ) 
Adjw;tmenl 

2 Add: Depreciation, amoniu1ion and im~irmcnl as per Statement or profit and Ion 166.48 78.07 0.66 60.70 
) Add/(Lcss): Any olhcr item of non.ash upcnsc/ non -cuh income (net or actual cash nows for these (62 .41) (32.91) (0.74) 28.01 

items), as m:1y be deemed necessary by 1he Manager. 
For example , any dccrcuc/ incrc,Hc in carrying amount of an usc:t or of ti liability rccogniz.cd in statement 
o r profit and losslinc:omc and expenditu re on mcuureincn l or1hc ::issel or the liability al rair value, in1crcn 
cost as per cfTec:tive intc:rcsl rate me thod. dcrcm:d tax, lease rents recognized on a straight line basis. etc. 

4 Add/less : Loss/gain on ule . 1ransfcr/ disposal/ liquidation or rc:al estate assets, in\'es1n,en1s (including cash 
cquivalcn1s),01her assc:IS or shares or /i nterest in Asset SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liquida1ionltransrcr/ disponl of real eslale assc:1s, in\'cSlmcnts (including cash 
equivalents), anets or shares of I interest in Auel Sf"Vs, adjuslcd for 1hc following: 
• Applicable c■pn:.11 gains and other tu.CJ 
• Rcla1cd dcb\S scnled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attr ibuliblc trvlslction costs 
• Proceeds rcinvatcd or planned lo be reinvested as per REIT lltgulatioru 
• Investment in 11ny form u pennittcd under the REIT Regulations as mny be deemed necessary by lhc 
M,magcr 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real cs1atc assets, investments, assets or sale of shares or ,\s5el SPVs not 
distributed pursuant 10 :in earlier plan lo rc•in~•cst as per REIT Rcsub1ions, if such proceeds .uc not 
intended 10 be inveslcd sub5cquenely. 

7 Add: lnle1cst (ur otln .. -r similar paymenls) on Shucholdcr Debi (or on dcbcnlurcs or other inslmmcnls held )67.71 77.50 198.56 
by the Drookficld RE IT) char.:cd/ debited to the stalcment orp,ofit and lou. 

8 Add/(Lcss) : Other 1djus1mcn1s. including but nol limited lo net changes in seeurily depo5ils, working 218 .97 l .62 (11.39) 270.25 
capi1al, de(cncdlprcpaid income or dcfoncd/ prepaid c,cpcndi1urc, clc. 

9 Less: Any expense in 1hc nature or capi11J cxpcndilurc including capilaliz.cd interest thereon (to 1he panics (119.11) (40.76) (3.37) ( 111.22) 
other than Droolilield REIT). c1pi1alizcd overheads, etc. 

10 Add/(Lcss) : Net deb \ (rcpaymcntY drawdown/ (redcmplion) or prerercncc shares/ dcbcnlures/ any 01hcr 610.05 76.85 99.10 
such instrument/ premiums/accrued in terest/ any other oblig;tions/ liJJbili1ics cit , lo pnn ics 01hcr 11111n 
Brookfield REIT, ■s may be deemed necessary by 1hc ~tan:ii,oer. 

11 Add: Cash inOows in rcla1ion 10 cqui1y/ non-rcfundahle ndvanee!I, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividcnd5 on 01 proceeds from 1cpay.ncnts or redemplions or buy-backs or c:ipil;il 1cduc1ion or 

shucs (includ ins compUlsory convenible ins\rumenls), held by .1nyone other lhan lhe Drookficld REIT 
(ci1hcr directly or indi rcc:dy), ind any lu:es thereon (including any di ,·idend distribulion u1.x or buy bock 
distribution 1ax, elc . irapplicablc). 
Tota l 111djushacnl1 !D) 1,181.69 162.37 jlU4) 545.47 
NDCF (C) • (A+D) l . l5UI 162.95 2.17 4Al.70 

Significanl 1ccoun1i ng policies (rcrer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 110 SO form an intcgr:il p:in of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements . 

As per our repor1 of c~·cn date 11tachcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Atcountanls 
Firm Registration No.: 0l512SN 

Anand Subranun~n 
ranncr 
Membcnhip No. 1108 15 
Place: DcngaluN 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For :and on behalro(thc Do:ard of Direclors of 
Drookprop M,in,i,:cmcnl Scn•icu PrivJ1.te UDtilcd 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~y--
A11k11r Gw(lla 
Di,cclor 
DIN No. 0868 7570 
Place: Mumbai 
D.:1 1c: 07 November 2022 

S•njecv Klffllar Sl,arma 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date· 07 Nonmbcr 2022 

Alok Agganul 
CbidExecu1ivc Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Da1e· 07 Novcmbc:r 2022 

SDl'l,Noid, To1al 

(60.31) (128.67) 

133.09 ◄ 39,00 

(53.61) ( 121 .59) 

168 .8 .1 1 12.60 

423.16 904.61 

(95.4)) (369.89) 

(160.63) 625.37 

415.41 2,290.10 
355.10 2,161.43 



Btookridd lndin Real E!tatc Trusl 
CondcnsNI Consolid:'.ltcd Financi:al Su1ttmc:nts 
(All :imoun15 arc in Ruprts million unless othrn,·isc slalcd) 

Addi1ion:II discloJutcs us nquind by r~nas:rnph 6 lo SEDI c:irc:ul;:ar No. CJR/ll\1D/DF'/1-46/2016 

Ntl Dls1ribu1:11.llc Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuanl 10 ,:uid:tnt'c undrr Par:ar:r:iph 6 to SEBI t'ircuhlr No. CIR/IMD/DF/l-i6n016 
(ii) Calculation of net distribul:1blc nsh 0o"-s :ti uc:h Asset srv 

Sr. No. ranicul:ars 

I rrofil / (L.c,ss) after lax u 11crs1n1c-mcnl of profit and loss (slandailenc) (A) 
Adjuslmtnl 

2 Add: Depreciation. amonization ;md imp:,inncrll as per S1Atcmcn1 orprolil aud loss 
3 Add/(Lcss): Any other i1em of non-cash expense/ non --cash income (nc1 of actual cash noW'S for 1hcsc items), 

as m.iy be deemed necessary l,y the M;1nager. 
For cxa.mplc., any decrease/ incrcflsc in canying amount of 1111 nsscl or or a linlJility recognised in slnlcmcnl or 
profit and loss/income auc.l cxpcm.liturc on mcasurcmcnl of 1he asscl or lhc liability at fair value, inlercsr cos.I 
as per crfcc1ivc in1crcs1 ra1c mc1hod. dcfcncd lax, lease rcnls recognised on a sir.tight line basis, c1c. 

4 Add/lcSJ: Loss/gain on sale. 1ransfer/ disposal/ liquid;nion or real cs1a1c assets, in\'cstments (including cash 
cqui\'aknts).othcr asscu or shares of /in1ercs1 in Asset SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liquid;uion/tnmsfcr/ disposnl of re.ii cstalc asscis, in\'tslmcnts (including e.1sh 
cqui\·alcnts), assets or shares of J interest in Asset SPVs, adjusted for the following: 
• Applicable capilal gains and otlm laxes 
• Rcla1ed debt, scnlcd ar due lo be scnled from sale proceed, 
• Any acquisition 
• Direclly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned 10 be reinvested as pct REIT Regulations 
• lnve,tmcnl in any form a, permillcd under lhe REIT Rl:gulation, a, may be deemed ncccssary by lhe 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from s.1lc or real es1a1c assets, in\'c,tmcnls, assets .or sale or shares of Assc.t SPVs not 
dis1ribu1ed pursu:ml 10 an earlier phm to rc-in\'CS1 as per REIT Rcguln1ions. irsuch proceeds arc no1 intended 
10 be invcs1ed subst(lucn1ly. 

7 Add: lnlcrcst (or olhcr similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on debentures or other instrumcn1s held by 
lhc Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited 10 1hc s1a1emcn1 ofproli1 and loss. 

II Add/(Lcss): OIiier adjustments, including, bu1 not limi1cd. 10 net changes in sccuriry dcposils, \\'Orlcing c:.apital, 
deferred/prcpiid income or dcfcncd/ prepaid expenditure, Cle. 

9 Less: Any expense in lhc nalurc or capi1al cxpcndi1urc including c.npilaliz.c.d inlL-rcsl thereon (to lhc panics 
other lhan Brookfield REIT). c.,pilalised ovcrhe:ads, clc. 

10 Add/(L..css): Net deb\ (rcpnymcnt)/ dr;,wdown/ (redemption) of preference shares/ dcbcnlurcs/ ;u1y olhcr such 
inS1rumcnt/ premiums/accrued imercst/ any 01l1er oblicalions/ liabili1ics etc., 10 panics otl1cr lhan Brookfield 
REIT. as may be deemed necessary by the Monascr. 

11 Add: Cash inOows in rda1ion 10 cqui1y/ non-rcru11d.1ble ad\'anccs. clc. 
12 Less: Any di\-idcnds on or proceeds from rcpayi.ncnts or rcdcmp1ions or buy-b::i.cks or c.ipitol rcdue1ion of 

shares (including compulsory convertible instnnnaus). held by anyone otl,cr 1han the Brookfield REIT 
(either directly or indirectly) • .ind any laxes thereon (including any dividend distribu1ion tax or buy back 
di.c.tribulion tax. etc., if iipplicalJlc). 

Toe.al adjustmrnl5 (0) 

NDCf' (C) ~ (A+IIJ 

SignifiC.lnl accow1ti11g policies (refer note 2) 

For lhc quarter ended JO Scpftn1brr 2021 
Condor Kolkato SPPL Nolda CIOP Fcs1u, 

(129.70) (35.44) 13.99 ( 157.60) 

164 .44 

(48.97) 

(109.18) 

(8-1.03) 

229.33 

905,65 

775.95 

116.50 

69.26 

(56.73) 

62.34 

248,99 
213,SS 

0.22 
1.45 

12 .55 

(0.09) 

14.13 
28.12 

6-1.26 
58.28 

256.94 

71.23 

(0.03) 

51.08 

507.76 
JS0.16 

The accompanying, notes from I lo SO fonn an intcs,al pan of these Condensed Consolidated Financial S1atemcms. 

As per our rcpon of e\'cn date a!lachcd 

For DELOllTE HASKINS & st:LLS 
Chartered Accounumts 
Finn Regislration No.: 01512SN 

Anand Subramnnian 
Panncr 
Meml,c:r.;hip No: 110815 

Place: Dengaluru 
Dale: 07 Novcmbcr 2022 

For and on bchalfoflhc Bo;ird orDircclors or 
llroo"prop Man1e:tmrn1 Srnirrs Private Umilrd 
(as Man:igcr 10 1hc Brookfield lndi::1 REIT) 

AnkurGuptn 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

S:mjecv Kumar Sh:11nn.1 
CIUcf financial officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Daie: 07 November 2022 

AlokAunn.111 
Chief cxccuti\'C officer 
Ploe<:: Mw,1b1i 
Da1e: 07 November 2022 

Tolol 

(308.75) 

JOO.Of 
(2.71) 

1,127,5() 

(140.88) 

342.75 

1,676.53 
1,367.78 



Brookfield l ndUI Rul Eslalc T r usl 
Condc11nd Consolid■ lcd Financial Sla lca1cn1S 
(All amonnls arc in Rurcrs mill ion u nltss olhtn4·ist sta led) 

Additio11;1I d isclosures as rc-qu irff by r aragnirh 610 SEDI circula r No. CIRJ I/\IDIDFl l -t6/2016 
Net Disrributablc Cash flow s (NDC F) pursn:anl to ,:11idancc 1111dtr l'::1t:1~raph 6 10 SEBI C'ir( ular No. CI R/I MDIDF/1-16/2016 
(ii) Calcula tion of ncl d i11r ilm1ablc ush nows al rad, Asset Sl'V 

For lbc h:alf 2:CJ1 r ended JO St(!lcn1bcr 1012 
Sr. No. rarlirnlars Candor Kolkal:a srrLNoida c1or Fcslus 

I Profit/ (Loss) ar1cr ta,; H rcr s tatement of profic and loss (standalon~) (A) (49.72) 18.29 34.56 (152.98) 
Adjustmcnl 

2 Add; Dc1>rcci11ion, :unoniza1ion and imr.ainncnl .is rer St.ilcmcnl of profit :mJ loss 268.48 154.67 I 37 122.21 
l Add/(Less): Any other ilcm of non-c1sh cxrcnsc/ non -cash income (net of actual c.,sh Oows for lhcsc ( 100.97) (4•1 .)2) 1.95 42.80 

ilcms), as may be deemed necessary by lhe Manager. 
For ex:1.mple, any dcc:rc:isc/ incrusc in carrying amounl of an .11net or of .J li.11bili1y recognized in slatcment 
orp,ofit and lon/inco1nc and expenditure on mcuurcmen1 of1hc asscl or 1hc liabi li1y al fair value , interest 
cos1 as per effective in1cn:s1 ~ le me1huJ. defc:rJcd lax, lease reuls rccosnizcd on a uraishl line basis, etc. 

4 Add/kss : Lon/gai n on s:,, lc. transfer/ disposal/ liquida1ion of real cs1:i1c .assets, in\'eSlmcnu (including cash 
equi\•.a lcnts),01hcr aueu or shares or /i nlcrcsl in Auel SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liqui dalion/uansfer/ dispos.il or real estate .:use ls, im14:slmcn1s (including cash 
equiv:1 lcn1s), aucls or sli.ucs or / i111cren in Assel SP Vs, 1djustcd for the followinc: 
• Applic:.1blc upit&I aains and other taxes 
• RcJ11cd debts set1led or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly ottribuLablc transaction cost, 
• Proceeds Rinvestcd or planned to be rt:invatcd &1 per REIT Regulations 
• Investment ia any form a, permitted under the REIT Regulations as m.ay be deemed necessary by the 
t,,bnagcr 

6 Add. Proceeds from ulc of re.11 cslale assets, investments, assets or sale of shares o f Asset SPVs not 
distribu1cd pursuanl 10 an earlier plan 10 re-invest as per REIT Regulations , ir such proceeds :ire not 
in1cnded lo be in\·csted !iubscquenlly. 

7 Add: ln1crcst (or other similar 1>aymcnts) on Shareholder Debi (or on dcbcnlures or other instrumcnls held 720.9) 154 .19 )90.95 
by Ilic Brookfield Rr;fT) charged/ debited lo 1he slatement orprofi l and loss . 

8 Add/(Less): Other adjuslmcnts, incl uding but not limited to net changes in securily deposits, working )42.16 ()8 4)) 2.84 ll6.5S 
capi1al, deferred/prepaid income or defcncdl prepaid exrcndilurc, clc . 

9 Less : Any expe nse in lhc nature or npilal expcndhurc including capi1:ilized interest thereon (lo the p:inies ( 148.Jl) (19.85) (4 .5ll (210.96) 
olhcr th:i n Orooklicld REIT). capilalizcd O\·crhcads, etc. 

10 Add/(Lcss) Ncl deb! (rcpil)'fflentV dr.awdown/ (redemption) of !)refe rence sh:ircs/ debentures/ An)' olher 968.99 l ll.57 203.96 
such inslrumenl/ premi ums/accrued interest/ any other obli,g11ions/ liabi lities c1c., 10 panics other than 
Orooklicld REIT, as may be: dcemtd necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add : Cash inflows in n: l:11ion 10 equity/ non-rerund:1blc advances . c1c. 

12 l.ess : Any dividends on or rrocccds from rc:1,aymtuls or redemptions or bu)••baeks or capital reduction or 
shares (including compulsory con\•eniblc instruments). held by anyone olher 1han the Brookfield REIT 
(cilher directly or indirectly). and any uxes lhcrcon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back 
disuibu1ion lax, c1c .. if applicable). 
Total adjuslNCnts !DJ 2,051.22 323.83 1.0 925.5 1 
NDCF (Cl E (A+DJ 1,00BO 342.12 36.19 712.53 

Signific.ant accounting policies (rcrcr note 2) 

The accompanying no1es rrom I lo SO form an integral p:ir1 a r 1tiesc Condenud Consolidated Financial S111.tcments. 

As per our report of even date anached 

For DELOITTE IIASKINS & S ELLS 
Char1crcd Accoun1an1s 
Finn Rcgis1ra1ion No.: OIS l2SN 

Anand Subununian 
P.anncr 
Membership No: I IO!IS 
Place: Dengalu11.1 
O.ate: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the 80.1rd of Di rce1on or 
Drook11 rop Mana,:cmr nl Stnoicu Priult Li,uit cd 
(11~ Manager to 1hc Brookfield India REIT) 

1-,Ji--
~urGupt:i 

Direc1or 
DIN No. 08687510 
Plac:.c: Mumbai 
Orne: 07 November 2022 

c . 
~--:--

Sanjccv Kumar Shn11U 

Chief Financial Offi cer 
Pince: Muml.lai 
l)ah:: 07 No\'cmber 2022 

Alok Aggnrwal 
ChicfExecu1h·e Officer 
Place: Mumbili 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

SDPL Noid• Total 

(IJJ.ll) (283.08) 

271.29 818.02 
(121.00) (221.54) 

34 1 .◄ I 1,613.48 

640 .0J 1,323.15 

(2 10 ))) (654.04) 

( I 19.Jl) 1,23 1.11 

I OI .OS 4,110.14 
674.82 J,827.16 

ol<.fie/0' 

fa 
0 1e1,S 



Brookfield lndi.1 Real ESlate Trusr 
Condensed Consolidated Fin:anci;;al Statements 
(All :amounts .urc in RupttS million anlC"is otherwise stated) 

Addilional disclosures ,s required by Paragraph 6 lo SERI circular No. CIR/IMDIDF/14612016 
Ncl Distributable Cash Flo,.•s (NDCI') pursu•nt lo guidance under Paragraph 6 lo SEBI circular No. CIR/IMDIDF/14612016 
(ii) Calcul,tion of ncl distributable cash Bows al each Asset SPV 

Sr. No. P:1rticul:1rs 

I l'rofil I (Loss) after tu as 1,cr st•lemcnt of profit and lo,s (standalone) (A) 
Adjustment 

2 Add : Dcprccia1io11, amortiulion and impainncnt as per S1atcmcnt ofprolil and loss 
3 Add/(Lcss): Any other item of non--c..,sh expense/ non --cash income (net of actual cash flows fo1 these 

items), ,s may be deemed necessary by the Mana£cr. 
For example, any decrease/ increase in c::mying amount of an asset or of a liability rccob'nizcd in statement 
of profit :md loss/income :md expenditure on measurement of lhc asset or lhc liability at fair value. intcresl 
cost as per effective imcrcsl ralc mclhod, deferred rnx. lease rcnls recognized on a straighl line b;:JSis, etc. 

4 Add/less: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ dis1>0sal/ liquidation of real estate assels, i1wc.°'l111t:111s (inclm.lins cash 
cqui"alenls),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs. 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/lransfcr/ disposal of real estate aS5cts, investmt:nts (including cash 
equivalenls), assets or shares of/ interest in Asset SPVs, adjus1cd for lhe following : 
• Applicable capilal gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be scnled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned lo be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
• Investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real cs.late asscls, invcslmcnts. asscls or sale of shares or Asscl SPVs not 
dislribulcd pursuant 10 an earlier pl:rn to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds arc 1101 . 

intended to be invested subsequently. 
7 Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on dcbcnlures or other instruments held 

by the Brookr.eld REIT) charted/ debi1cd lo the statement ofpror.1 and loss. 
8 Addl(Lcss): Olher adjustmenls, including but not limited to nel changes in sccurily deposits, working 

capilal, defcned/prepaid income or deferred/ prepaid expcndilurc, clc. • 
9 Less: Any expense in 1hc nature of capi1al cxpcndilurc including capitalized inlcrcst !hereon (to the parties 

01her 1han Brookfield REIT). capilalizcd overheads, clc. 
IO Add/(Lcss): Nel debl (repaymcnl)I drawdown/ (rcdcmplion) of preference shar<s/ dcbcnlurcs/ any olher 

such ins1rumcn1/ premiums/accrued interest/ :my other obliga1ions/ liabilities etc. , to panics other 1han 
Brookr.eld REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add: Cash in0ows in rela1ion lo equi1yl non-refundable advances, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividends 011 or proceeds from rcpa)'111en1s or redemptions or buy-backs or capital reduction of 

shares (including compulsory conver1ible instruments), held by anyone 01hcr lhan lhe Brookr.eld REIT 
(cilhcr direclly or indirectly), and any laxes thereon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back 
dis1ribu1ion tax, etc., if applicable). 
Tot•I adjustments (B) 
NOCF (C) = (A+U) 

For the hall year ended JO September 2021 
Candor Kolkala Sl'PL Noida CIOI' Festus 

(210.78) (72.62) 5.0J (285.62) 

330.60 
(82.38) 

1,511.42 

687.03 

(125.37) 

229.33 

2.550.63 
2.ll9.85 

142.38 
(16.90) 

234 .67 

121.16 

(149.16) 

150.&I 

482.96 
410.34 

0.42 
1.27 

70.22 

(0.80) 

71.11 
76.14 

128.51 
112.53 

506.77 

(38.44) 

(0.11) 

51.08 

760.]4 
474.72 

'NDCF for lhc half year includes NDCr- for lhe period 08 February 2021 to 31 March 2021 amounting lo Rs. 759.47 million which has been included in olher adjustmenl. 

Significant accounting policies (refer 1101c 2) 
The accompanyinc notes from I to 50 fonn an integral part oflhesc Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even dale a1tachcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Char1,red AccounlanlS 
r-inn Re~istration No.: 015125N 

AnantJ Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Manngcmcnf Services Privnte Limited 
(as Mana£cr to the Brookfield India REIT) ~-

~urGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 No\'cmbcr 2022 

SanjCC\o' Kumar Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Da1c: 07 November 2022 

Alok Ag~•rwal 
Chief Execulivc Ofr.cer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Total 

(563.99) 

601.91 

14.52 

2,252.86 

8]9.97 

(275.44) 

431.22 

3,865.04 
J.JOl.05 





Drookfirld India Real Estalt Trmt 
Condcnsrd Cc111olidakd Financial S1alcmcnlS 
(All ~•nounts ;uc in Rupees million unlr!'l's othu,,·l.-.c !l;tlcd) 

Addilion~I disclosures :n required b)' ru:a1:npl1 6 to SEBI circular- No . CIU/JMD/DFJl~6/l016 
Ncl Distribulablc: Cash Flows (NDCF) rrnrrnanl to ,:uidancc undt"r Pan11tnph Ci lo SEBI cirn1h1r No. CIRJIJ\11)/01:/l.(6/2016 

(ii) Calcublion o(nd dis:fribul:ablc cash Rows :u cnth Asset SPV 

Sr. No. Pulicnlars 

I Profit/ (Loss) aflcr tn u per sfatcrMnl or profit and loss (slandalouc) (A) 
AdjnSlmcnl 

2 Add . Depreciation. amor1iz.a1ion and impairment u per S1.1.tcmcnt of profit and loss 

3 Addl(Lcss): Any 011,cr i1cm of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actual cash nows for these 

i1cms), as m:'ly be deemed ncccssery by Ille t\,f:m:iccr . 
For example, :iny decrease/ increase in carrying amount or .:m asset or or a liabili1y recogniz.cd in slalemcnl 

or profil and loss/income and c)(rcnditurc on mc:nurcmcnl nf1he assc1 or the liabilit)' al fair value. interest 
cosl as per effective intcrcsl rate mclhod. defem:d lax , lease rcnls recognized on a straight line basis, clc , 

4 Add/less: Loss/g.:iin on sale . 1randcrl disposal/ liquid.11ion of real ern,tc a.sscts. invcslmcnu (including cash 

cquiv.1lcn1s),01hcr asse1s or shares of /in1cres1 in Assc1 SPVs. 
5 Add· Proceeds from sale I lif1uida1ion/1ransfcr/ dispos:sl of real c:slalc auc1s. in,·eslmcnts (including cash 

cqui"•alcnu), ;uscts or sh:m:s or/ interc.51 in Auel SPVs . .adjusted for the followiny : 
• Applicable c.apital gains and other tu.cs 
• Related debts settled or due to be sc1tlcd frum sale proccccb 
• Any acqui,ition 

• Directly attribulablc transaction costs 
• Proceeds rcin~csted or planned lo be reinvcalcd as per ROT Regulations 
• Investment in any form a., pemlined under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Ma11::1gcr 

6 Add: Proceeds from ule or re.a.I cs1a1c aucts. in\'cSlmcnu, assets or s::1lc of shares or Asset SPVs no1 

distribu1cd pursuant lo an earlier plan 10 re•invcst as pc, Rf.IT Rcgula1ions, if such proceeds arc nol 
intended 10 be im·cs1cd subscqucnlly. 

1 Add: lnlcrcsl (or otlu:r siniil.;u p:iyrncnlS) on Sharcholdcr Debt (or on debentures or other inslrumenls held 
by lhc OrooUicld REIT) chari;cd/ debited lo 1hc s1atcmcnt or profit and loss 

6 Add/(Len): Other adjustmen1s, including bul nol limited 10 net eh3ni;cs in sccuril)' deposils. worl.i,; c 

capi1al, dcfcrrcd/prep::1id income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, etc.• 
9 Less : Any expense in 1hc nature of capital e)(pcndi1urc including Ci1pi1ali2.cd intcresl !hereon (to 1hc panics 

olher lhan Orookfield REIT). capi1ali1ed O\'Crhe1ds, clc. 

IO Add/(Lcss): Net debt (repayment)/ drawdown/ (redemption) or preference shares/ debenlurcs/ ony 01hcr 
such instrument/ premiums/accrued interest/ any 01hcr oblisnlions/ liabili1ics etc ., to par1ics other than 

Brookfield REIT, .ts may be deemed ncecSSaf)' by the Manager. 
11 Add : Cash innows in relation 10 cqui1y/ non-refundable .ad"·anccs. c1c. 

12 Less J\ny dividends on or proceeds from repayments or rcdcmplions or buy-bac~s or apital rcduclion of 
sh.arcs (includinc compulfory con,·cniblc inslrumcnts). held by anyone oll1cr 1h.:m 1he Drookficld REIT 
(ci1hcr c.lircc1ly or indircc1ly), :,,nd any 1ues 1hcrcon (including ony dividend c.lis11ibution lax or buy b::1cl,; 
dis1ribu1ion tax, clc ., ir applicable). 
Tofal adj11Sln1cnl1 (D) 

Candor Kolk.11:1 

(SU.8~) 

671.80 
(255 .18) 

2,722.64 

59).47 

(2)8 .70) 

ll .365 .05 

15.859.08 
15.JH.2J 

For lhe ve:ar rndcd l I March 2021 
srrL Noid• 

(11,.14) 

290.86 
(51.29) 

440.99 

187.52 

()79.08) 

1,592 IS 

2,081.15 

CIOr 
J9.00 

1.09 
2.18 

78.7) 

(3 .02) 

7U8 
117.98 

Festus 

(55U6) 

156.24 
197 )) 

966.92 

(~6.14) 

(84.28) 

1,808.50 

).098.57 
2,543.91 

SDPLNoid11 Tot:al 

(14.18) (l,164.5J) 

97.l2 1.Jl7.JI 
(105.47) (212.4J) 

122.87 4,l5J.42 

5.980.70 6,794.28 

(110.67) (915.75) 

(5 ,627.J8) 10,IJI.Jl 

257.J7 21.J75.15 
2U.49 20,210.~2 

•NDCF for the yc.ar end inc JI March 2022 includes NDCF ror lhc period OS February 2021 to 31 Mnrch 2021 amoun1ing 10 Rs . 759 47 million which has been included in olher adjustment. 

Sicnificanl accountinc f>Olicici (refer note 2) 

The accomp:&n)·inc no1e~ from I to 50 form an in1csral pan or 1hcsc Condcn~cd Consolidalcd Fi11a11ci.1I S1:,,lcmcnls 

As per our report of even d:1tca1tachcd 

For DELOITTE IIASKINS & SELLS 
Char1crcd Accoun1ants 
Firm Rcgislration No.: OIS12SN 

Au.and Subra mani:1n 

Panncr 
Membership No: 11081 S 
Place: Ocngaluru 
Date · 07 November 2022 

For ancJ cm behalfoflhc 80:trd ofOi,cclo~ or 

Drook11rop ~lan:i.gcinc11t SenitcJ Prh·:iitc Limited 
(ils M.,nilgcr 101he nrookricld India REIT) 

1~--
~urGupl• 

Dircc1or 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumb:ii 
D:stc: 07 No\'cmbcr 2022 

S:rnjecv Kum:iir Sharm2 
Chief Fi~ntiill Officer 
Pl.ice: Mumbai 
Da1e· 07 NO\·cmber 2022 

Alok An:uwal 
Chief Execu1ivc Officer 
Pl.1ee: Mumbai 

D.ate 07 Nonimbcr 2021 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Oreanization structure 

The interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ('Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements') comprise financial statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
('Brookfield India REIT or 'Tmst') and its subsidiaries namely Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ('SPPL Noida'), Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Stmctures Private Limited ('Candor 
Kolkata'), Festus Properties Private Limited ('Festus'), Seaview Developers Private Limited ('SDPL Noida') and Candor India Office Parks Private Limited ('CIOP') (individually referred to 
as 'Special Purpose Vehicle' or ' SPY' and together referred to as 'Brookfield India REIT Portfolio companies' or 'Group'). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India. 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the ' Settlor') has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust on 17 July 2020, as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, 
under the provisions of the Indian Tmsts Act, 1882 and the Tmst has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate Investment Tmst on 14 September 2020 under Regulation 6 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Tmsts) Regulations, 2014. The Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst is Axis Tmstee Services Limited (the 
'Trustee') and the Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Manager'). 

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of 
Brookfield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to 

Unitholders. 

Activities during the period ended 31 March 2021: 

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor and certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 42) on 08 February 2021. In 
exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been allotted 127,892,403 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs. 275/- each. 

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required approvals from the relevant authorities. The Units were allotted to the 

successful applicants on 08 Febmary 2021 and 11 Febmary 2021. 

All these Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on 16 February 2021 . 

The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs are provided below: 

Name of SPY 

SPPL Noida 

Candor Kolkata 

CIOP 

Festus 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/!TeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 
21, Dundahera Guru!,>rarn 

Providing management related service 
including facilities management service and 
property management services. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Powai, Mumbai. 

Activities during the previous year ended 31 March 2022: 

Shareholding up to 07 February 2021 (in percentage) 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: I 00% 
BS REP Moon CI L.P.: 0.00% (IO Shares) 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd.: 99.97% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.03% 

BSREP Moon Cl L.P: 99.99% 
BSREP Moon C2 L.P. · 0.01% 

Kairos Property Managers Pvt. Ltd.: 10.76% 
BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd.:89.24% 

Shareholding from 08 February 2021 (in 
percentage) 

Brookfield India REIT · I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited · 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(1 share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Stmctures Private 
Limited : 0.00% ( I share)(as nominee of Brookfield 
India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT . I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India RE[T acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPY') by acquiring all the equity interest held by certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 42) on 24 January 
2022. In exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been paid cash of Rs. 8,334 .57 million and allotted 15,463,6 I 6 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs . 
294.25 each. TI1ese Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on O 1 February 2022. 

Name ofSPV 

Seaview 
Developers 
Private Limited 
('SDPL Noida') 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. 

Shareholding up to 23 January 2022 (in percentage) 

BSREP India Office Holding IV Pte. Ltd .: 99.96% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.04% 

Shareholding from 24 January 2022 (in 
percentage) 

Brookfield India REIT . I 00% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

00\die/ 
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT comprises : 
• the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, 
• a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and each of the 
SPVs and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue 
in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of the 
Brookfield India REIT on 07 November 2022. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular number 
CIR/IMD/D F / 146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 ("REIT Regulations") ; Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations 
(refer note l 5(a)(i) on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments 
under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Accordingly, these condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information 
required for a complete set of financial statements. These condensed consolidated financial statements 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in 
the Company's consolidated financial statements under IND AS for the year ended 31 March 2022. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard 
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use. 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Significant accounting policies 

a) Basis of Consolidation 

The Brookfield India REIT consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT and 
its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in Note l. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights 
that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns . 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. 

The procedure adopted for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India 
REIT is stated below: 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

i) The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the principles of 
consolidation as per Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. 

ii) The financial statements of the Group are consolidated by combining/adding like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows. 

iii) Intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between entities of Brookfield India REIT are eliminated in full. 

iv) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and 
intragroup transactions and balances including unrealized profit are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

b) Functional and presentation currency 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield 
India REIT's functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded 
off to nearest million except unit and per unit data. 

c) Basis of measurement 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained 
in the accounting policies below. 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

d) Use of judgments and estimates 

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

(i) presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead 
of compound instrument (Note 15) 

(ii) determination of useful life of investment property (Note 2.2 (g)) 
(iii) determination of recoverable amount I fair value of investment property (Note 2.2 (g), and 

Note 43), Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, Statement of Total Return at Fair Value 
(iv) determination of lease term (Note 2.2 (n)) 
(v) recognition/ recoverability of deferred tax assets (Note 2.2 (p) and Note 6 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

e) Current versus non-current classification 

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet 
based on current/ non-current classification: 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the nonnal operating cycle; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified-as non-current assets and liabilities. 

t) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability 
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or 
liability at the measurement date. 

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which are 
directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are observable by 
market participants: 

• Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at 
the measurement date. 

• Level 2: Inputs ( other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement date 
and for the duration of the asset's or liability's anticipated life. 

• Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management's best estimate of what market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is 
given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in detennining 
the estimate. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

Fair value measurement framework is adopted by Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair value of 
various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value. 

g) Investment properties 

Recognition and measurement 

Investment property consists of commercial properties which are primarily held to earn rental income 
and commercial developments that are being constructed or developed for future use as commercial 
properties. The cost of commercial development properties includes direct development costs, import 
duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes, borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
development and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

Equipment and furnishings physically attached and integral to a building are considered to be part of 
the investment property. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the investment property's carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Brookfield India 
REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the assets not ready for its intended 
use before such date, are disclosed as investment property under development. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation 

Investment property is depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The 
useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of assets, the 
estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and 
maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

The useful lives of the investment property are tabulated as below: 

Particulars Useful Life (Years) 
Buildings 60 
Plant and Machinery 4-15 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 - 12 
Electrical fittings 4-15 

Diesel generator sets 15-25 

Air conditioners 15 
Office Equipment 5 - 12 
Kitchen Equipment 5 
Computers 3-6 
Right of Use (Leasehold Land) As per lease term 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the statement of net assets at fair value. Fair values 
are determined by an independent registered valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional 
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being 
valued. 

h) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises the purchase price, including import duties 
and other non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use. 

If significant parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on 
initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are required to 
be identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul 
expenditure. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the property, plant and equipment's carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Brookfield India REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of a property, plant and equipment is 
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal of a property, plant and equipment is recognized in Statement of profit 
and loss. 
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Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful 
lives. The useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of 
assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of 
replacement and maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which 
asset is ready for use (disposed off). 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset, 
whichever is lower. 

Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are tabulated as follows: -

Pa rtic u la rs Useful Life (Years) 

Buildings 60 

Plant and Machinery 5-20 

Furniture and Fixtures 3-14 

Electrical fittings 10 

Air conditioners 3-15 

Office Equipment 4-15 

Kitchen Equipment 5 

Vehicle 8 

Computers 3- 14 

Computer Software 5 

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software. Intangible assets are carried at cost and amortized over 
a period of 5 years, which represents the period over which the Brookfield India REIT expects to derive 
economic benefits from the use of the assets. 

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. 

i) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non­
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset's recoverable 
amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU 
on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are 
largely independent from other assets and groups. 
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Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless 
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CG Us or group of CGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. ln estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 
is not subsequently reversed. ln respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that 
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

j) Foreign currency transactions 

ltems included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates ('the functional 
currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India 
REIT functional and presentation currency. 

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange rates are generally 
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

k) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policies 

The Brookfield lndia RE[T revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in 
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied 
retrospectively, wherever applicable. 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets 
or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of errors 
results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity 
of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period 
presented are also restated. 

I) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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(i) Financial Assets - Recognition 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are initially 
measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss . 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets, and 
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent S PPL 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss is 
recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gains or losses 
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest 
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so 
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting 
mismatch'). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 
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• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS I 09 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading are classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield India REIT 
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Brookfield 
India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables 
with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable and lease 
receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime 
ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Trade Receivables are generally written off against the allowance only after all means of collection have 
been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 

(iv) Financial liabilities - Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts. 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
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• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement of 
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose 
of repurchasing in the near tem1. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS I 09 are 
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of 
profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains or losses within 
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 
The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and 
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost 
of a financial liability. 

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as other 
gains/(losses ). 

(vi) Income/loss recognition 

• Interest income 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calculating 

001<.fie/O' 
<Q\ /, 

* ,, 
/, ;. 

<fl-,.: 
~ ale\'=>~ 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

• Borrowing costs 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (ELR) and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. 

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditures on properties under development or redevelopment 
or property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized is 
determined first by borrowings specific to a property where relevant, and then by a weighted average 
cost of borrowings to eligible expenditures after adjusting for borrowings associated with other specific 
developments . Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amount capitalized is 
the gross borrowing costs incurred less any incidental investment income. Borrowing costs are 
capitalized from the commencement of the development until the date of practical completion. The 
Brookfield lndia REIT considers practical completion to have occurred when the physical construction 
of property is completed and the property is substantially ready for its intended use and is capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and 
charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development 
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

(vii) Embedded derivatives 

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS l 09 are not separated. 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in 
all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded 
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

m) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether: 

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or 
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified; 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT 
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what 
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purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either: 

As a lessee 

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or 
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for 

what purpose it will be used. 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying 
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 
of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield 
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date; 
• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain 

to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Brookfield India REIT's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in 'property, plant and equipment' and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the 
statement of financial position. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short­
term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The 
Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a Lessor 

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment 
properties. 

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub­
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference 
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the 
Brookfield India REIT's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT's net investment 
outstanding in respect of the leases. 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind 
AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. 

n) Revenue recognition 

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected 
from customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and Services tax, and applicable 
service level credits, discounts or price concessions . The computation of these estimates involves 
significant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experience, 
expense incurred etc. 

i. Income from Operating lease Rentals 

Assets given under operating lease are included in investment property. Revenue recognition under a 
lease commences when the tenant has a right to use the leased asset. Generally, this occurs on the lease 
commencement date. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and 
circumstances including renewal, termination and market conditions. 

Income from Operating Lease Rentals also includes percentage part1c1pating rents. Percentage 
participating rents are recognized when tenants' specified sales targets have been met. 
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ii. Income from maintenance services 

Income from maintenance services consists of revenue earned from the provision of daily maintenance, 
security and administration services, and is charged to tenants based on the occupied lettable area of the 
properties. Income from maintenance services is recognized when the entity has satisfied its 
performance obligation by delivering services as per terms of contract entered into with tenants. 

o) Employee benefits 

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences. 

Provident fund 

The Brookfield India REIT 's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans 
and is charged as an expense in statement of profit and loss based on the amount of contribution required 
to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. 

Gratuity 

Brookfield India REIT has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined post-employment benefits plan 
covering eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current 
service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit method; with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 
are not reclassified. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or 
curtailment occurs, or when the Brookfield India REIT recognizes related restructuring costs or 
termination benefits, whichever is earlier. 

Short-term employee benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employees render the 
service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected 
to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under: 

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase 
their entitlement of future compensated absences; and 
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. 

Other Long-term employee benefits 

The employees of the Brookfield India REIT are entitled to other long term benefit by way of 
accumulating compensated absences. Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated 
absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of 
availment of leave. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation based on actuarial valuations as at the balance sheet 
date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses 
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relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they arise. 

p) Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, 
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax, 1961 is recognised as 
current tax in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the 
Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Brookfield India REIT will pay normal income tax during the period for 
which MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised 
as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing 
evidence no longer exists . 

(ii) Def erred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 
at the time of the transaction; 
Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 
Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, Brookfield 
India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary 
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against 
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets---unrecognised or recognised, are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer 
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probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities 
are recognized in respect of temporary differences that reverse within tax holiday period. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

q) Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also 
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be 
measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. 

r) Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. 

Identification of segments: 

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment 
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('CODM') to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is 
a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities from which it earns 
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Brookfield India REIT's other components. 

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT's structure and powers conferred to the Manager to 
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private 
Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they are 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, disinvestment, 
etc. 

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining 
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating 
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS l 08 "Operating Segments" in respect of 
reportable segments are not applicable. 

s) Subsequent events 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non­
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements are authorized for issue. 

t) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits 
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

u) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to unit 
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the 
period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable to 
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number of units outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units. 

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have 
been issued at a later date. ln computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are 
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included. 

v) Business Combination/Asset Acquisition 

The amendment to Ind AS I 03 Business Combinations clarifies that while businesses usually have 
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. 
To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. 

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any 
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce 
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive process has been acquired. 

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of 
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, 
the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross 
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. 

Brookfield India REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of SPVs. 
Refer Note 44 of the financial statements for details. 
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w) Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flows 

Condensed Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Profit/ (loss) 
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Group are segregated. For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. 

x) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Condensed 
Consolidated Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

y) Cash distribution to Unitholders 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the 
distribution is authorized and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a 
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 

z) Income support 

The income support that is an integral part of an acquisition transaction is treated as deduction in the 
acquisition cost of such investment property. Where the right to receive the income support is spread 
over a period of time, the right to receive the income support is recognized as a financial asset at fair 
value and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
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3 Property, plant 2nd equipment .and Intangible as1ets 

Grou block 
Balance Hat Additions during the 

Particulan 01 April 2022 period 

Auets (site) 
Air conditioner 0.07 . 
Computers 0.09 . 
Plant and machinery 0.02 
Furniture and fixrurcs 1.47 
Office eauioment 0.41 
Sub total 2.06 . 

AHet., (maintenance) 
Air conWtioner 4.32 I.SI 
Plant and machinery 126.74 15.94 
Furniture and fixtures 33.15 2.38 
Office equipment 8.38 1.64 
Electrical fittings 0.60 . 
Kitchen Equipments 0.16 
Sub total 173.35 21.47 
TOTAL 175.41 21.47 

Intangible Assets 
Softwares 0.46 -
GRAND TOTAL 175.87 21.47 

Grou block 
Balance H .at Addition., due to Additions 

Particulan 01 April 2021 assctJ during the 
acquisition* year 

Auets (•ite) 
Air conditioner 0.07 - . 
Computers 0.08 O.QI . 
Plant and machinery 0.02 . . 
Furniture and fixrure.s 1.43 0.04 
Office eauioment 0.28 0.13 
Sub total 1.88 0.18 

As.nu (maintenance) 
Air conditioner 3.11 1.28 (0.07) 
Plant and machinery 66.54 26.51 33.87 
Fumirure and fixtures 26.69 0.87 5.59 
Office equipment 4.87 0.39 3.12 
Electrical fittings 0.60 . 
Kitchen Eauinments 0.08 0.08 0.00 
Sub total 101.89 29.13 42.51 
TOTAL 103,77 29.31 42.51 

Intangible A.,,cts 

Softwares 0.46 -
GRAND TOTAL 104.23 29.31 42.51 

Deletion,! Balance as at 
Adjusbnents 30 September 2022 

0.07 
0.09 
0.02 

. 1.47 
0.41 

. 2.06 

5.83 
142.68 
35.53 
10.02 
0.60 

- 0.16 
. 194.82 
. 196.88 

0.46 

- 197.34 

Deletions/ Balance as at 
Adju,bnents 31 Much2022 

0.07 
0.09 
0.02 
1.47 
0.41 

- 2.06 

- 4.32 
(0.18) 126.74 

33.15 

- 8.38 
. 0.60 

- 0.16 
(0,18) 173.35 
(0.18) 175,41 

. 0.46 
(0.18 175.87 

Accumulated depreciation Net block 
Balance u at Charge for the Deletions/ Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at 
01 April 2022 period Adju.!ltments 30 September 2022 30 September 2022 31 M■rcb 2022 

0.07 . 0.07 . 
0.08 . . 0.08 0.01 0.01 
0.02 . . 0.02 . 
1.21 0.14 . 1.35 0.12 0.26 
0.29 0.04 . 0.33 0.08 0.12 
1.67 0.18 . 1.85 0.21 0.39 

0.79 0.52 1.31 4.52 3.53 
8.98 5.73 14.71 127.97 117.76 
5.96 2.72 8.68 26.85 27.19 
2.99 1.13 . 4.12 5.90 5.39 
0.08 0.03 0.11 0.49 0.52 
0.04 0.03 . 0.07 0.09 0.12 

18.84 10.16 . 29.00 165,82 154.51 
20.51 10.34 . 30,85 166.03 154.90 

0.33 0.12 0.45 0.01 0.13 
20.84 10.46 . 31.30 166.04 155.03 

Ac.cumulated depreciation Net block 
Balance u at Charge for the Deletions/ Balance a., at Balance as at Balance as at 
01 April 2021 year AdjustmentJ 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

. 0.07 . 0.07 . 0.07 
0.08 . 0.08 0.01 0.08 
0.02 . 0.02 0.02 

0.09 1.12 . 1.21 0.26 1.34 
0.00 0.29 . 0.29 0.12 0.28 
0.09 1.58 - 1.67 0.39 1.79 

0.07 0.72 - 0.79 3.53 3.04 
1.02 7.96 . 8.98 117.76 65.52 
0.89 5.07 . 5.96 27.19 25.80 
0.52 2.47 - 2.99 5.39 4.35 
0.DI 0.07 . 0.08 0.52 0.59 
0.00 0.04 - 0.04 0.12 0.08 
2.51 16.33 . 18.84 154.51 99.38 
2.60 17.91 . 20,51 154.90 101.17 

0.04 0.29 0.33 0.13 - 0.42 
2.64 18.20 . 20.84 15:,,o, h l< tiA I ~<.11.59 

( 
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4 Investment property 

Particulan Balance As al 
01 Anril 2022 

.A.uets ( constructed), pven/upected to be liven on 
operatinc; leue 

Freehold land 25,580.44 
Buildings# 104,244.70 
Air conditioners 1,923.86 
Electrical fittings & equipment 1,262.09 
Plant and machinery 1,338.51 
Diesel generator sets 939.39 
Fwniture and fixtures 308.42 
Right of use (leasehold land) 1,129.49 
Office Equipment 18.45 
Computers 1.19 

Sub Iola! 136 746.54 
Auet1 (Cood court), c;iven/expected to be eiven on 
open.tine leue 

Air conditioner 7.05 
Fwniture & fixtures 31.08 
Plant and machinery 4.81 
Office equipment 2. 18 
Kitchen equipment 13.45 
Comouters 0.20 
Sub total 58.77 
Sub total - Investment Property 136,805.31 

Investment property • under development•• 
Capital vrork in progress 1,745.46 

Sub total - Investment Property under devdopment 1,745.46 
Tola! 138,550.77 

Gros.! block 

Addition, durin& the Deletions/ Balance A, al Balance As al 
neriod Ad'wtments 30 Sentember 2022 01 Anril 2022 

25,580.44 -
1,241.30 (374.11) 105,111.89 1,660.40 

53. 17 1,977.03 191.34 
50.57 1,312.66 183.98 
36.94 1,375.45 137.67 

3.52 942.91 107.07 
2.85 311.27 73.78 

592.07 1,721.56 8.60 
1.04 19.49 5.62 
0.97 2.16 0.41 

1.982.43 '374.lll 138 354.86 2,368.87 

- 7.05 1.00 

- 31.08 11.20 
4.81 0.68 
2.18 0.66 

13.45 2.72 
0.20 0.20 

- - 58.77 16.46 
1,982.43 (374.11) 138,413.63 2,385.33 

784.43 (1,250.61) 1,279.28 

784.43 (1.250.61 1.279.28 -
2 766.86 (1 624.72 139,692.91 2.385.33 

# Buildings net block includes Rs. 35,469.76 millions (31 March 2022: Rs. 36,071 .94 million), held under co-<levelopment agreemem as fully described in Note 36 (Capital Commitments) . 
•• The amount of Rs. 1,250.61 million shown under NDeletions/ Adjustments• represents capitalization dwing the period. 

Reconciliation for total depreciation u.pensc:: 

Total depreciation on propeny, plant and equipment for the period 
Tate.I depreciation on investment property for the period 
Less:• Depreciation during the construction period on site assets• capitalized 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on Right of use 0easehold land) 
Depreciation upense (or the period 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 September 1021 

5.34 
633.19 

(0.09) 

(0.87) 
637.57 

For the quarter For the haJfyear 
ended ended 

30 June 2021 JO September 2.02.l 

S.12 10.46 
686.85 1,320.04 

(0.09) (0. 18) 

(0.90) (1.77) 
690.98 1_.3_28.55 

Accumulated depreciation Net block 

Char&e for !he Deletions/ Balance A, al Balance A, at Asal 
rvriod Ad'ustmentJ 30 Senlember 2022 30 Senlember 2022 31 Marcli 2022 

- 25,580.44 25,580.44 
997.90 (64.34) 2,593.96 102,517.93 102,584.30 
113.86 305.20 1,671.83 1,732.52 

96.21 280. 19 1,032.47 1,078.11 
71.14 208.81 1,166.64 1,200.84 
59.67 166.74 776.17 832.32 
27.85 101.63 209.64 234.64 

7.58 16.18 1,705.3 8 1,120.89 
1.78 7.40 12.09 12.83 
0.22 - 0.63 1.53 0.78 

1,376.21 (64.34) 3,680.74 134 674.12 134,377.67 

0.44 - 1.44 S.61 6.05 
5.05 - 16.25 14.83 19.88 
0.30 - 0.98 3.83 4. 13 
0.27 - 0.93 1.25 1.52 
2.11 - 4.83 8.62 10.73 
0.00 0.20 - 0.00 
8.17 - 24.63 34.14 42.31 

1,384.38 (64.34) 3,705.37 134,708.26 134,419.98 

- 1,279.28 1,745.46 

- - - 1,279.28 1 745.46 
1.384.38 164.34) 3 705.37 135.987.54 136 165.44 

·~ 

*k::)% ~/4. ~ 
~ ,f!! 
~ sie"\'3~ 
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Particulan Balance As at 
01 April 1011 

A.Mets (constructed), given/e.xptcted to ht e;ivtn on 
operatin~ leue 

Freehold land 25,580.44 
Buildings# 70,578.81 
Air conditioners 1,209.98 
Electrical fittings & equipment 806.00 
Plant and machinery 880.66 
Diesel generator sets 651.23 
Furniture and fixtures 262.98 
Right of use (lc11Schold land) 459.96 
Office Equipment 16.87 
Comcuters 1.14 
Sub total 100.448.07 
Auets (food court), e;iven/e.xpected to be given on 
operating le.ue 

Air conditioner 7.05 
Furniture & fixtures 29.67 
Plant and machinery 4.81 
Office equipment 2.12 
Kitchen equipment 2.52 
Cornouters 0.20 
Suh total 46.37 
Sub total - lovestment Property 100,494.44 

Investment property• under development 111111 

Capital work in progress 791.74 

Sub total - Investment Property under development 791.74 
Total 101,286.18 

Gros, block 

Additions due to Additions Deletions/ 
usets acquiaition 111 durine; the Adjustmenu 

year 

-
32,927. 10 738.79 -

638.01 75.87 -
378.42 77.67 -
412.69 45. 16 -
285.95 2.21 

29.08 16.36 -
669.53 -

0.60 0.98 
0.04 0.01 

35 341.41 957.05 

1.41 

-
0.06 -
1.14 9.79 -
2.61 9.79 -

35,344.03 966.84 

1,110.75 724.77 (881.80) 

1110.75 724.77 (881.801 
36,454.78 1691,61 {881.80) 

• Above as.sets have been acquired ~ pan of SDPL Naida assets acquisition. Refer note 2.1 basis for consolidation and note 44 (ii). 

Balance As at Balance.As al 

31 March 1011 01 April 1011 

25,580.44 
104,244.70 205.04 

1,923.86 22.77 
1,262.09 30.92 
1,338.51 17.91 

939.39 12.98 
308.42 21.22 

1,129.49 0.87 
18.45 1.01 

1.19 0.06 
136 746.54 311.78 

7.05 0.13 
31.08 1.43 
4.81 0.09 
2.18 0.08 

13.45 0.17 
0.20 -

58.77 1.90 
136,805.31 314,68 

1,745.46 

I 745.46 -
138,550.77 314.68 

# Buildings net block includes Rs. 36,071.94 millions (31 March 2021 : Rs. 36,731.01 million), held under co-<lcvelopment agreemem 115 fully descnbed in Note 36 (Capital Commitments). 
•• The amount of Rs. 881 .80 million shown under "Deletions/ Adjustments" represents capitalization during the year. 

Ret:onciliatioa for total depredation e.xpen!le: 

Total depreciation on property, plant and equipment for the period 
Total depreciation on investment property for the period 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on site assets. capitalized 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on Right of use (leasehold land) 
Depreciation u.pen.se for the period/ year 

For the quaner 
ended 

JO September 2021 

4.62 
467.42 

(0.09) 

~ 
471.13 

For the half year 
eoded 

JO September 2021 

9.05 

920.06 
(0 .20) 

(1.63) 
927.28 

Accumulated deorKiation 
Charze for the 

year 

1,455.36 
168.57 
1S3 .06 
119.76 
94.09 
52.56 

7.73 
4.61 
0.35 

1,056.09 

0.87 
9.77 
0.59 
0.58 
2.55 
0.20 

14.56 
2,070.65 

-

-
2 070.65 

For the half year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

9.15 
1,150.59 

(1.38) 

(0.87) 
1,157.49 

Deletions/ 
Adjuatmenta 

-
-

-

-
-
-

For the year 
ended 

JI March 2011 

18.20 
2,070.65 

(1.58) 

Q1.Q)_ 
2,084.77 

Net block 

Balance As at Balance As at 
31 March 1021 31 March 1011 

- 25,580.44 
1,660.40 102,584.30 

191.34 1,732.52 
183.98 1,078.11 

137.67 1,200.84 
107.07 832.32 
73. 78 234.64 

8.60 1,120.89 

5.62 12.83 
0.41 0.78 

1,368.87 134 377.67 

1.00 6.05 
11.20 19.88 
0.68 4. 13 
0.66 1.52 

2.72 10.73 
0.20 0.00 

16.46 42.31 
2,385.33 134,419.98 

1,745.46 

I 745.46 
2,385.33 136,165.44 

okfie/0' 
0 

cj; -0., 
'./ 
'../. SJe\S~ 

AJ1t 
31 March 2021 

25,580.44 
70,373.77 

1,187.21 
77S.08 
862.7S 
638.25 
241.76 
459.09 

15.86 
1.08 

100 135.29 

6.92 
28.24 

4.72 
2.04 
2.35 
0.20 

44.47 
100,179.76 

791.74 

791.74 
100.971.50 
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Non current financial assets - Other 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
SecuritJ deposits 
Fi.xcd deposits with banks• 
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 
Lease rent equalization .. 
To re laled par1ies (refer nolc 42) 
Finance receivables fl 

'These frxed deposits arc of restricted use being lien against state authority. 

0 Lease rent equalization arc classified as Financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage chime. 

As at Asal 

JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

555 .27 5K9.77 

2.32 2.23 
0 .04 0.04 

222.]9 166.50 

184 .22 678.79 

964.24 1,437.33 

II Finance receivables represents income support guarantee received from a related party in respect of tenancy level of investment properties ofSDPL Naida in connection with its acquisition by Brookfield India REIT (refer note 
44 (ii)), where the right lo receive the income support is spread over a period of time starting from 0 I January 2022 and ending on ) I March 2024 . TI1e income support guarantee is recognized as a financial asset at f.air value 

through profit and loss. 

Deferred tax asset (net) 
Deferred tax asset (net) 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

3,620.88 

3,620.88 

As at 
JI March 2022 

3,755.46 

3,755.46 

Tlic Group has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs. 3,230.01 million (31 March 2022: Rs , 2,921.36 million) on unabsorbed depreciation & business losses and Rs . 1,253.92 million (31 March 2022: Rs . 1.253.92 million) on MAT 
credit entitlement, considering the deferred tax liability on existjng taxable temporary differences in respective SPVs that will reverse in the future and estimated taxable income for future years . The amount of deferred tax assets 
considered realizable, however, could reduce in the near 1em1 if estimates of future ta.-..:ablc income during the carry-forward period arc reduced . 

Non-current lax assets (net) 

Advance income tax 

8 Other non-c urrent assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Capital advances 
Prepaid expenses 
Balance recoverable from government authorities 

Current financial assets - Trade receivables 
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 
Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

IO Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks : 
- in cum:nt account 
- in deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 

11 Other bank balances 
Deposit account with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months• 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

2,lll .63 

2,333.6J 

Asat 
JO Seplem ber 2022 

8 .55 
113 .97 

14.46 

136.98 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

313 .07 
26 .84 

(26.84) 

313.07 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

128 .90 
2.168 .00 

2,296.90 

As at 
JO September 2022 

500.03 

500.0J 

• Tliese fixed deposits arc of restricted use being lien against debt sen.•ice rcsen.1e account, bank guarantees given to various authorities and given as security for sales tax registralion. 

As at 
JI March 2022 

2,416.27 

2,416.27 

Asat 
JI March 2022 

19.27 
142.16 

14.11 

175.54 

As at 
31 March 2022 

224.88 
68.26 

(68.26) 

224.88 

As at 
JI March 2022 

19] _6; 

1,850.00 

2,043.65 

As at 
JI March 2022 

506.49 

506.49 
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12 Current financial assels- Loans 

To parties other than related parties 
(Unsecured and considered doubtful) 

Advances to vendors 
Less: loss allowance 

Lo.i.ns n.:ccivablcs - cn.:dit impain:d 
Less: loss allowance 

13 C urrent financial assets - Ocher 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
To parties other than rcla1cd parties 
Security deposits 
Unbilled revenue• 

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 
Lease n.:nt equalization• 
Other n:ceivab les 
To rcla led parties (refer note 42) 

Other n:ccivabli:s 

Finance receivables fi 

•Classified as financia l asse1 as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time . 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 31 March 2022 

0.36 0 .36 
(0.36) (0 .36) 

0.36 0.36 
(0.36) (0.36) 

Asat As at 

JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

0.01 0 .01 
262.69 1;9.01 

0 .90 14.37 
118 .85 51.18 
415.85 47 .39 

0.02 0.0 1 

681.22 483.34 

1,479.54 755.31 

# Finance receivables represents income suppon guarantee received from a n:lated p;:i.ny in respect often:mcy level of investment propcnics ofSDPL Naida in connection with its acquisition by Brookfo:ld India REIT (refer note 
44 (ii)). where the right to receive the income suppon is sp read owr a period of time staning from 01 January 2022 and ending on 31 March 2024 . The incomc suppon guarantee is recognized as a financial asset at fair value 
through profit a.nd loss. 

14 Other current assels 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Advances to vendors ' 

Prepaid expenses' 
BalanC4! recoverable from govcmmcnl authorities 
OLher Advances 

• For related parties balance, n:fcr noh: 42 

15 Unit Capital 

Particulars 

As at 01 April 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quaner ended JO Ju ne 2021 

Less: DiS1ribution to Unitholdcrs for the quaner ended 30 September 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended JI December 202 1 

Add: Reversal of issue expenses no longe r payable (refer note iv below) 

Add: Units issued on preferential basis during the year 
- pursuant to the pn:fcrential allotment, issued, subscriOCd and fully paid·up in cash (refer note ii below) 

• in exchange for equity inlen:st in SPVs (refer note iii OClow) 

Less: fapcnse incurred towards preferential allotment (refer note iv below) 

Closing balance as at JI March 2022 

As at 01 April 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 

Closing balance as at 30 September 2022 

(1) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accountin g thereo r 

Asa l 
JO September 2022 

43.26 
191.04 
140.65 

0 .75 

375.70 

No. or Units 

302,801,601 

16,82 1,856 

15,463,616 

335,087,073 

335,087,073 

335,087,0,J 

As at 
JI March 2022 

Amou nt 

33 .01 
54.29 

IH .16 
0 .12 

222.58 

81,774.78 

(297 .05) 

(605 .60) 

(481.45) 

25.55 

4,949.ID 

4,550 .17 

48 .92) 

89,867.31 

89,867.31 

(720.441 

(857 .82) 
88,289.05 

(i) TI1e Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit is entith:d to one vote per unit. The Unitholdcrs have the righ1 to receive at least 90%oflh1! Net 
Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust a.I least once in every six months in each financia l year in accordance with the REIT Regulations . The Board of Directors of the In vestment Manager approves distributions . The distribu1ion 
will be in proponion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders . The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees . 

Underthc provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfie ld India REIT for each financia l year. Accordingly, a 
ponion of the Unit Capital contains a contrac1ual ob ligation of the Brookfield lndia REIT to pay to its Unitholdcrs cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capil.3.1 is a compound financial instrument which contain both equity and 
liabi lity components in accordance with Ind AS 32 ~ Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEO! Circulars (No. CIR/IMDIDF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. C IMMD/DF/1-11/2016 
dated 26 December 20 16) issued under the REIT Regulations. the Uni! Capital has been presented as "Equity" in orderto compl~· with the requirements of Section 1-( of Annesurc A to the SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 
dealing with the minimum pn:scnlation and disclosure n:quirements for key financial statements . Consistent with Unit Capita l being classified a.s equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statcm.:nt of Changes in 
Unitholders' E.quity when the distributions a.re approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

(ii) Initial Public Offering of 138.18 1,800 Units for cash at price of Rs . 2?; per Unit aggreg:uing to Rs . 38,000.00 million. Refer not.: 47 for utilizat ion of IPO proceeds. Further preferential allotment of 16,82 1,856 Units for ca.sh 
a.I price of Rs. 294.25 per unita.ggregating to Rs. -1 ,949.83 was made during the ~-ca.r ended 31 March 2022. The preferential allotmenl wa.s ma.inly u5':d to fund the SDPL Noid;:i. acquisition. as more fully described in Note 44 (ii) 

(asset acquisition note) . 



Brookfield India Real Eslale Trusl 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless olherwise slated) 

Noles to the Condensed Consolidaled Financial Statements 

(iii) Brookfo:ld India REIT acquin:d the SPVs by acquiring all the equity inti.:rcst held by our Sponsor and certain mi:mbcrs of our Sponsor Group. TI1c acquisition of equity intcrest in the SPVs has bccn donc by issuc of 
127,892,403 Units of Rs . 275 cach and 15.463,616 Units of Rs. 294 .25 each during the period ended 31 March 2021 and ycarcndcd 31 March 2022 respectively, as pcrthe table below. 

Name of SPY Number or Units allotted for acquiring all the equity interest held in lhe SPVs 

Sponsor Sponsor Group (excluding Sponsor) Total 

Durinl" the neriod ended JI March 2021: 
Candor Kolkata ;4.117.888 16,364 ;4.134.2;2 

Festus 31,474,412 31,474,412 

SPPL Naida 41,483,012 41 ,483,012 

CIOP 800,727 800,727 

Durinj! the nrevious vear ended JI Ma rch 2022: 

SDPL Naida (refer note I : Organizational stmclurc) 15,463,616 1;,463,616 

Total number of Units issued 54,117,888 89,238,131 143,356,019 

(iv) Expenses incurred pertaining to the Initial Public Offering (IPO), prcfcn:ntial allolmcnt and listing of the Units on the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in 
accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

(b) Unitholders holdinl?" more lhan 5 nercent Units in the Trusl 

Name of Unitholders As at JO Se tember 2022 As a t JI March 2022 
No. of Units % of holdines No. of Units % of holdines 

BS REP India office Holdings V Ptt.: . Ltd . ;4, 117,888 16. 15°1. ;4,117,888 16.15% 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd . 41,499,453 12.38°1. 41,499,373 12.38% 

BS REP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd . 36,727,398 10.96'¾ 36.727,398 10.96% 

BS REP II India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 9.39"/4 28,086,775 8.38% 

(c) TI1e Trust has nol alloncd any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till thc balance sheet date Further. the Trust has not issued any units for 

consideration other than cash from the date of rcgistratjon till the balance sheet date. e.xccpt as disclosed above . 

(d) Unitholdine of snonsor l:"rOUD 

As at JO Sent ember 2022 
Name of Unitholders 

BS REP India office Holdings V Pte . Ltd. 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte Lid . 
BS REP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. 

BS REP II India Office Holdings II Pie . Ltd. 

Kairos Property Managers Private Limited 

BS REP Moon CI L.P. 
BS REP Moon CZ L.P. 
BS REP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. 

BS REP India Office Holdings VI Ptc. Ltd. 

16 Other Equity• 

Reserves and Surplus 
Retained earnings 

No. of Units 
;4,117,888 
41,499.453 
36,727.398 
31,474,412 

1;,463,616 

800,6;0 

•Refer Condensi:d Consolidatcd Statement of Changes in Unitholdcrs' Equity for dctailcd movemcnt in otJ1cr equity balances . 

Relained earnings 

% of holdinl"s 

16.15% 
12.38% 

10.96% 
9.39'¾ 

4.61'¾ 
0 .24°1. 

As at JI March 2022 % Change during the 
half year ended JO 

No. of Units % of holdinl"s Sentember 2022 
;4, 117,888 16.15% 0 .00% 
41,499,373 12.38% 0.00% 
36,727,398 10.96% 0.00% 

28 ,086.775 8.38% 1.01% 

3,387,637 1.01% -1.01% 

800.6;0 0.24% -0.24% 

80 0.00% -0 .00% 

1;,463,616 4.61% 0.00% 

0.24% 

As at Asal 
JO Seplember 2022 JI March 2022 

(2, 14;.12) (1.().16 .38) 

(2,145.12) (1,046.38) 

The cumulative gain or loss arising from tJ1e operations which is retaincd by tJ1c Brookficld India REIT is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings . At the end of the period, the profit/(loss) after Ll.X is 
transferred from the St.atcment of Profit and Loss to thi: n:t.aincd earnings account . 

17 Non-current financial liabilities- Borrowings 
Secured 
Tenn loan from financial institutions 

Less :- Current maluri1ies oflong term borrowings (refer note 21) 

Total Borrowings 

18 Non-current financial liabilities - others 
Security deposit from lessee 
Retention money 

Asal 
JO September 2022 

;3,181.76 

(61;.J0) 

52,566.46 

Asal 
30 Sep tern ber 2022 

1,77150 
66.70 

1,838.20 

As al 
JI J\.farch 2022 

51,655 .34 

(661.81) 

50,993.53 

As at 
JI March 2022 

1,244 .8; 
84.4; 

1,329.30 



0 rookfald Ind ia Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Conso lidated Fi nancia l Slalcmcnts 
(A ll amounts arc in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financia l Statements 

19 Provis ions 

Provision for gratuity 

20 Other non -cu r rent liabi lit ies 

Deferred income 
Contract liability• 

As at As at 
JO Septem her 2022 JI Marc h 2022 

18 .28 18.9 1 

18.28 18.91 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

274 .06 290.00 
508.47 355 .93 

782.53 645.93 

•Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited emered into a Join! Development Agreement with Gurgaon lnfospacc Limited (GIL) by which Gil will pay Rs. 1,000 million ·in various tranches commencing January 
202 1 to October 2023 for the development/constru ction of buildi ng used for commercial and retai l purposes on certa in land parcels, the title of which is held by Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limi1ed. Under 1he 
said agrecmenl, Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Privah: Limited is ent itkd lo 72% of the gross sale receipts and depos its from the tenants arising out of the lease of the deve loped areas and GIL is entitled to receive 
ba lance 28%. 1l1c amounl rcce iwd as at 30 September 2022 of Rs . 600.00 million including Goods and Service Tax (31 March 2022 of Rs . 420.00 million) has been presented as contract liab il ity excluding Goods and Service 
Tax . 

2 1 Short ter m borrowings 
Cu rren( maluril ies oflon1::-le rm borrowin1::s 
Secured 
Term loan from fina ncial institutions 

22 Currenl financia l li abililics - T rade payab les 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstand ing dues of creditors othe r than micro en1erprises and sma ll enterprises• 

'For balance payable to related parties, refer note 42 

23 C urren t - Oche r financia l liab ilit ies 
Security deposit from lessee 
Retention money 
Cap ital creditors 
Employee related payables 
Other payables 

24 Provisions 

Provision fo r gratuity 
Provision for compcnsa1ed absences 

25 Othe r current liab il ities 

Statutory dues payable 
Deferred income 
Other pa)-ablcs• 

• For balance pa~-ablc to related parties, refer note 42 

26 Current tax liab ilit ies (Net) 

Provis ion for income tax 

Asal As at 
30 September 2022 J I J\.fa rch 2022 

6 15.30 66 1.81 

615.30 66 1.81 

Asal As at 
JO Septem her 2022 31 March 2022 

0.76 17.34 
673 .93 620. 17 

6R69 637.51 

Asat Asat 
JO Sep I em he r 2022 J I March 2022 

3.277.00 3,40 1.53 
159.45 132.89 
546.25 394 .94 

32.74 10.93 
183 .32 120.97 

4.1 98 .76 4.06 1.26 

Asat Asal 
JO September 2022 J I March 2022 

2.33 0. 18 
7.69 7. 14 

10.02 7.32 

Asal Asat 
30 September 2022 JI Ma rch 2022 

154 .99 151.29 
203.86 16 1.38 

19.90 

378.75 312.67 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 J I Ma rch 2022 

121.7 1 120.64 

121.71 120.64 



Brookfield India Rn l E1lltc Tnul 
Condenud Coo,olidated Fin111cial Stltement~ 

(All amount! arc In Ruptts millioot unlen otbcrwiic 1lalt"d) 
Nolc110 lht' Coodco1cd Conrnlidated Financial Statcmcnti 

Partlculan 

27 Rcnnuefromopcnlioni 

Salcor1cn·ice1 
!11co111c from op,.niling kas.: r.:riLals • 

/11comc from mainh:namx Sl.:l'i..:a; 

Sale ofproJuclt 
Sak of li.x'U and b...'\·cragc,,; 

Ot/1<:fS 

Tot1lrc1·enuefromopc:ntion1 

28 Othcrlncome 

lalcrc:11 income from fin:ancid nsch al :amortized cod 
lnl~c;\ inc•:imcon lixW d<-1iosi1s \\ilh banks 
lnh:rc,,;t i1)1;()111c m S<):urily deposit 

Otbcn 
ln,.;oi11cfrt'llns,.-rapsalc 
lnt<!fl!SI on ioco nc t.ax rdi.tnd 
Liabili!it!v'1m:r.isions no longer rnquiru..l '1Till<-TL back 
Fairvalll<!gain oo inc."lllh! support 
Miscd]ar,,:,.JWio,;,,-,.11.! 

29 Co, t of malcri:all consumed 

Opening stock 
Add: J>Un: .. hascs Uurirlli: 1hc 1x:riod 

J\dd: Olhcn 
L.o;s: Cl<Jsinl,! stock 

~O £m11lnyec benefit, upcn1e 

Salari~, wage,; and b-.Jnus 

ClTJtributions lo pru-.id..:nl fw1d 
Gratuityo;1i,.n,;c 
Comp,.n,;.1lOOabscncc,; 

31 FinanccC0111 

lntc:~d and fi11:aace chargts on fio111cbl li1hllUic1 :at :amorti1.ed c:oJt 

lnlcr~lonh:nn loon 
lnl<!f~lonka.~\iabilily 

Otbcn 
Otha lxxnmill{l cosls 

32 Dc11rc:ciatio11 :and amortization expc:n1c1 

- oo properly plant anJ .:t1uip111<.'!ll and inLa~iblc as.,;cts 
-l""lflin\'l::.lnl..nlpn.'J)crt',· 

For the quarter ended For lbc quarter ended For the quarter ended For lh<" hlfyear coded For the h1lf~ur ended For the halfyeueadcd For the year coded 
JO St:pten1ber 2022 JO Juoe 2022 JU St:ptcmbcr 2021 JO Sc:r,tcmher 2022 JI March 2022 JO St:ptembcr 2021 JI 1\-hrch 2022 

2.0S6.-19 
%3 .3-1 

3019.8) 

1-1 .34 

1.85 

J,036.02 

23 .75 
9.55 

2.01 
3.72 
4 .82 

3(,. 19 

0 .36 
80.40 

9.71 

l.61 

1I.J2 

71.71 

4.IO 
28G 
1.33 

80.00 

1.02J.77 
7.22 

59.30 

1.()90.29 

(8.2ll 
I 082.08 

5.25 
632 .32 

6J7.57 

2,03-UJ 
866.32 

2,900.45 

8.84 
I.II 

2,9!0.-10 

20.24 
l-l .09 

8.90 
28 .95 

1.20 
23 .90 

O.OI 
'J7.29 

6 .05 
0 .98 

711 .TI 
3.75 

1.17 
0 .36 

84.05 

902.37 
7 .14 

6-l .56 

97-L07 
(15.-16) 

958.61 

5.03 
685.95 

690.98 

1,561.-IO 

550.JI 
2,111.71 

5.03 
O.J.l 

2,117.08 

20.27 
6 .26 

0 .95 
0 .77 
0 .) 11 

2.34 
J0.93 

4.-l4 

0 .28 

-1.72 

118 .39 
2.41 
1.16 
0.50 

52.46 

387.16 
2.77 

41.44 

431.37 
(5 .90) 

-125.-17 

4 .53 
-166 .60 

-',71.13 

4,090.62 

1.829.66 
5,920.28 

23.18 
2.% 

59-16.-12 

-l3 .9') 

23.6-l 

I0.9 1 
32.67 

6 .02 
60.0<) 

OJ7 
177.69 

15.76 
2.59 

HI.JS 

150.48 
7 .115 

4 .03 

1.69 

16-1.05 

1,926. 14 
1-1 .36 

123 .86 

2,06◄.J6 

{23 .67) 
20-I0.69 

I0.28 
1,3111 .27 

1,328.55 

].198 .52 

1.1-19 .75 
..... ~-18.27 

10.75 
1.00 

-1,-160.02 

35 .07 
9. 19 

3.03 
29.36 

1.10 
31.58 
48 .03 

157J6 

9.511 
0.11-l 

l0.-12 

83 .75 
5.62 
2 .89 

1.05 

9J.JI 

1,162.72 

11 .13 

113.(>-l 

1.255.U'J 
(19.01) 

1136.08 

7.TT 

1.149.72 

1,157.-19 

3, 177.:50 
I.I 13.57 
-1,291.07 

16 .19 
0 .6] 

-1,307.89 

35 .98 
19.19 

3.77 
-l .115 

0 .74 

2 .3-1 
66.87 

13.11 

O.-l9 

13.60 

95.95 
4 .82 
2.27 
0.50 

IOJ.54 

767.-12 

5.52 

827') 

855.7.J 

(11.12) 
8-1-1 .61 

8.115 
9 18.-lJ 

927.28 

6.476.02 
2).63.32 
8 739.J-I 

26.94 

1.63 

8767.9 1 

71 .05 

28 .38 

6 .80 
34.21 

1.84 

31.511 
50.37 

22-1.23 

22.69 

1.33 

2-1.02 

179 .70 
10.-1-l 
5. 16 

1.55 

196.85 

1.930. 1-1 
14 .25 

166 .-13 

2,llll.82 
(30. 13) 

2080.69 

16.62 
2.0611. 15 

2,08-1.77 



Brookfidd I ndia Reil E1t:a tc Tnnt 

Conde n~cd Coniolid:atc-d Fin:a 111::i 1I St:atcn1cnh 

(All :a mounlt a rc in Rupe-ct m ill ion, unlcu (ltbc rwi,c ,t:atcd) 

Note, to the Condensed Consolid:a tcd F in:ancial S t.11len1enl1 

P:art icuhr, 

33 Other upc111e1 

r't\Jf}U1)'111an:igcmcntl.:CS 
p,,,..\·..:rallll Ii.id 
Rql.lirallllmainll).1.1nc.: 
ln.~ur-JOC<! 
1..4!:il allll pn.1t<!SS1oua l c,.:p,:n."<! 
Audi1tca!'i(rcf.::rnote"a"bd..,w) 

Facili1ru,;:igel<!c'1 
Rt.%lt:1\ 1owur<ls slll..'11 tcnn k:aS¢! 

Cro.lil lmp,1iro.l 

Allo1\'UOCe ,or <!:\ll(XlcJ cru.lil luss 
Corporate socia l rcsponsibi\ily L.-,,;p,.n.~cs 
Dmation 
Miscdlan..).)U.~C\:PtJlSl!l 

:a)Det:ailfofrcmu 11enilion tn:auc.liton 

As auc.litl',r (oo accrwl basis. oclUl.li~ applicab le taxi!>') 
• forst.a\UIOJ)':!Udit 
• li.'ll'otherstl"\i.;e; 

• forn.-imbu.r'Sl!lll.::rJIOf .... -...11'1!1).,;¢1 

34 T:axcxpease 

Cunu1ttax 
.fr,· current paiOO 
-forca,licrycar:s 

Ddi:rrw. tnx cl1.1rp.c / (c:rulit) 

For lhc qu:arferendcd Fo r lbe q uarter ended For the qu:arterended Fortlle h.llfyca r ended For lhe ba lfyurc-nded For lhe balf yc:arc-n dcd For t he yc:ar ended 

JO September 2022 J U J 1111c 2022 JO Sep tember 2Cl2 I JO Scplc m h,cr 2022 J I r>h r cb 2022 JO September 2021 J I ~-hrch 2022 

120.)0 
357 .55 

22\Ul l 
12.7:5 
:5:5.27 
6.60 

20 .86 
7.:50 
3.20 
8.8-1 

2.43 

1.6' 

28 .72 

fl5-l.67 

6.57 

0.03 

6.60 

9.92 

1.f8.35 

1511.27 

11-U-l 

27:5 .28 
242 . 18 

11...12 
49.97 

6.-17 
H.8 1 

7.-19 
3.()6 

0.:58 
6.23 
0.63 

34 .39 

786J5 

5. 11 

0 , 18 

1.18 
6 .. n 

11.87 

(11.38) 

(13.98) 

(IJ.-n) 

81.8-1 
18-1.27 
153 .24 

8 .11 

37.0 1 

-U-1 
26.39 

7.25 

2.-19 
:5 . 11 
0.2:5 
1.78 

19.95 

5.12.21 

4,5-1 

7.4 1 

(56.88) 

(-19. -1 7) 

23:5. 1-l 
632.83 
-171.1') 

2•1 . 17 

105 .24 

13 .07 

:54 .67 
1-1.99 
6.26 
9.-12 
8 ,(16 
2.27 

63 . 11 

1.641.02 

11 .68 

0.2 1 

1.18 
IJ.07 

21.79 

(11.38) 

13U7 

U.f.78 

188 .66 
326 .39 
n1.21 

18. 17 

96...13 
12.35 

58 .24 
14 .98 

5.6-l 
2.95 
9Jl] 
2.80 

50.54 

l,17fl.25 

11.49 

U.19 
0.67 

l 2.J5 

19,90 

() .81) 

(160.381 

(1.f~.29) 

1(,354 

36-U2 
316 .92 

16.19 
8 1.1 5 

I0.17 
46. 18 
16.6 1 
4.59 

7.82 
0 .25 
2 .81 

20.00 
39.06 

I 089.fl l 

10.08 

0.09 
10.17 

8.06 

(84.62) 

(76.56) 

352 .20 
690.') 1 

708 .19 
3-U6 

177.:58 
22.:52 

10.l.42 
}1.:59 
10 .2} 

10.77 

10 .C/8 

5.61 

20.00 
89.60 

2,268.06 

21.57 

0. 19 
0.76 

22. 52 

27.96 

(3.8 1) 

(24:5 .0 1) 

(220.86) 

Rndlicld Inc.Ii.a REIT i~ a blL~ill<!S-i trust 1\-l!istcru..1 Wlc.l.::r SEHi REIT RcguLltiun.~. 2014 . 1-1.:n-:c, the i.i1h.i·c,;t and Ji\ic.lc:ricJ ro;..i\'cJ or n:..:t.i\'able by nnxli,;lidd India REIT frum 1/l<! SPVs is ,:,,::l).npl fri:11n In.-.: unkr ,;,xtk."lfl I0(23FC) oftlic ln<).)lllC fox Acl. 196 1 (/\ct)_ Furth.::r, 
any c:..11<-"'0lli1ure incU!Tl!LI in rdation to .:-aming the ,:,,:empt income is not lax <lca.luctible in \"j.._,.,\· oft/ic prV'>isi\'in., ofs,:aion 14A oft/1e Acl 

Titc iOC("llncofBrooktield India REIT. other 1l1.1nc,.:cmpt i0Cl.1111cml).lliwl<,,J ab.n'I!, i~ cl1arg.:ahlc to LllX at llic maximum marginal rJtcs in friri;e(for UlO.!quan..r mdul 30 Junc2022 : 42.744%: li:ir thequan.::r and }c:.1r..ndu.l 3 1 Mardi 2022 : 42.744%). 0:04,1 l(lfthc ii)l.:l.)lt1C 
chargc:ibk1ol:lx1'1Jl tr.i.nsli!rofshof\ I.Clll1 capita l as.,;cts lhklcrscciion 11 IAofthcAct and king lt..'flUcapital a,>sct.,; unc.lt.,-s.xlioo 112 oflhcAct. 
SPVs arc U1e Indian compani~ incorpora.tll.l wk.I ... ,- U1.:! Companie:,; Acl. ·rn..: lllla l ihlX'llle\,rthcS PVs is ..:h:1rgc;.ibk to tax in aooxdan,:.,: with Uic pr,.ivisioos ,._\f1h..: Acl 
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(All amounts arc in Rupees millions unless othcnvisc stated) 
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

35 Contingent liabilities 

Particulars 

Claims against the SPVs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (Refer note I below) 

Claims against the SPYs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax (VAT/Work contract/Entry tax} 
(Refer note 2 below) 

Grand Total 

Note I 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 

Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Total 

As at 
30 September 2022 

As at 

I, 158.86 

7.52 

1,166.38 

30 September 2022 

807.04 
15 .30 

336.52 

1,158.86 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,158.86 

12.43 

1,171.29 

As at 
31 March 2022 

807.04 
15.30 

336.52 

1,158.86 

Contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2022 includes penalty amounting to Rs. 552.23 million (31 March 2022 Rs . 552.23 million) in relation to disallowance 
of settlement fees paid in earlier years for termination of contract. Oiher contingencies include Rs. 606.63 million (3 I March 2022 : Rs . 606.63 million) relating to 

other disallowances under the Income Tax Act. 1961 . 
The tax officer has set-off certain tax refund claimed in Income tax returns against these demands . 

Note 2 

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited • 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Total 

As at 
30 September 2022 

2.67 

4.85 
7.52 

As at 
3 I March 2022 

2.67 

9.76 
12.43 

• The Company has given a bank guarantee of Rs. 1.00 million (31 March 2022: Rs . 1.00 million) to Member Secretary UP Pollution Control Board. 

:--0 okfie;O' 
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36 Commitments 

Particulars 
Capital commitments (net of advances) 

The SPV wise details of capital commitments arc as follows: 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Other commitments 

As at Asat 
JO September 2022 31 March 2022 

630.47 902.92 

249.98 199.37 
60.03 135.80 

8.32 161.48 
312. 14 406.27 

630.47 902.92 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (fonnerly known as "Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited"; now amalgamated in 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f O I April 2017) has an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by 
Gurgaon lnfospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures 
Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on 16 November 2006 as 
amended from time to time. Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits 
from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%. 

In supplement to earlier JDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private 
Limited (the co-<leveloper) on 17 September 2007 as amended from time to time under which the developer and co-<leveloper will jointly carry out the process of 
installation of fit-outs & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the same ratio as to sharing of gross proceeds i.e. 
28% and 72% respectively. This agreement is accounted as joint operations as per Ind AS 111 . 
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37 Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management 
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value 

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost and for which fair 
values arc disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instruments, which are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Carrying value Fair value 
As at Asal Asal Asal 

30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 

At Amortized Cos/ 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables # 313.07 224.88 313.07 224 .88 
Cash and cash equivalents # 2,296.90 2,043.65 2,296.90 2,043 .65 
Other bank balances # 500.03 506.49 500.03 506.49 
Other financial assets # 1,578.34 1,030.52 1,578.34 1,030.52 

At FVTPL 
Fina ncia I Assets 
Other financial Assets" 865.44 1,162.13 865.44 1,162.13 

Total financial assets 5,553.78 4,967.67 5,553.78 4,967.67 

At Amortized Cost 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowines # 53,181.76 5 1.655.34 53,181.76 51.655.34 
Trade oavablcs # 674.69 637.51 674.69 637.51 
Other financial liabilit ies # 6,036.96 5,390.56 6,036.96 5,390.56 

Total financial liabilities 59,893.41 57,683.41 59,893.41 57,683.41 

# fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as the carrying value approximately 
equals to their fair value. 

" Fair value of Receivable for income support is determined on the basis of present value of expected future cash flows. These are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due 
to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. The key input for determining the same is discount rate. 

ii) Measurement of fair values 
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 

Level l : Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. 

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is detem1ined using valuation 
techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

There have been no valuation under Level I and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the quarter/ half year ended 30 September 
2022 and year ended 3 1 March 2022. 

The Brookfield India REIT policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 

iii) Details ofsienificant unobservable int>uts 
Significant unobservable inputs I Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value 

Financial assets measured at fair value (Receivable for income support) 
Discount rate (30 September 2022- 11 . 75% : 3 1 March 2022- 11 .50% and 12. 75%) I The estimated fair value would decrease (increase) if discount rate is higher (lower) 
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iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values 
For the fair value of receivable for income support, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs 

constant, would have following effects: 

30 September 2022 

Discount rate (I% movement) 

31 March 2022 

Discount rate (I% movement) 

v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

Fair Value relating to receivable for income support 
Balance as at 24 January 2022 

Income support received 

Net change in fair value - unrealized (refer note 28) 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at I April 2022 

Income support received 

Net change in fair value - unrealized (refer note 28) 

Balance as at 30 September 2022 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

3.85 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

8.06 

Decrease 

(3 .85) 

Decrease 

(8.06) 

Amount 
1,358.69 

(228.14) 

31.58 

1,162. 13 
1,162.13 
(356. 78) 

60.09 
865.44 
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38 Segment reporting 

a) Ind AS I 08 establishes requirements to identify the operating segment and related disclosures, basis how the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM') evaluates the performance and allocates resources to different segments. Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT structure and 

powers conferred to the Manager to REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Managc~t Services Private Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Malccr ('CODM'), since they arc empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, 

investment, disinvestment, etc. 

As the Group is primarily engaged in the bU5iness of developing and maintaining commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire bu.s.iness as a sing]e operating segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" in respect of reponable 
segments arc not applicable. 

b) Customer A represented 13.12%, 13.68%, 14.27%, 18.43%, 18.19¾ and 17.97% of revenues for the qwrter, half year ending 30 September 2022, quarter ending 30 June 2022, quarter, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively, Customer B 

represented 14.54%, 14.35%, 14.15%, 15.39%, 15.76% and 15.'70% of revenues for the quaner, half year ending 30 September 2022, quaner ending 30 June 2022, quaner, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively and Customer C represented 10.65%, 

10.67'/i,, 10.69%, 11.50%, 11.41% and 11.50% of revenues for the quarter, half year ending 30 September 2022, quarter ending 30 June 2022, quarter, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively. 

Additional financial disclo.!iure.s u required under para 4 of SEBI cirtular CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016 

39 Statement of Property lfi!e ffOtal/Operatine income 

S.No Entity and Property Property Addre.,, Location Nature of Income For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the balfye■ r For the balfycar For the half year For the year 
name ended ended ended ended ended ended ended 

30 September 2022 30 June 2022 30 September 2021 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2021 31 Manh 2022 

1 Candor Kolkata One Candor TechSpace IT/ITES SEZ, Dundahera. Gurgaon Rental income and 869.17 836.99 846.98 1,706.16 1,486.72 1,735.60 3,222.32 
Hi-Tech Structures Sector-21 Gurgaon, H.aryana-122016 other operating 

Private Limited income 

2 Candor Kolkata One IT/JTES SEZ, Candor TechSpace, Action K.olkata Rental income and 507.56 475.98 518.79 983.54 958.63 1,058.52 2,017.15 
Hi-Tech Structures Area- I D, New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata- other operating 
Private Limited 700156 income 

3 Shantiniketan IT/JTES Park, Candor TechSpace, Naida Rental income and 445.72 396.92 310.36 842.64 623.89 609.70 1,233.59 

Properties Private Institutional Plot No B12 - 62, Sector 62 , other operating 
Limited NOIDA. Uttar Pradesh- 201309 income 

4 Festus Properties Kensington A and B, IT/ !TES, Kensington Mumbai Rental income and 482.48 476.24 440.95 958.72 885.42 904.07 1,789.49 
Private Limited SEZ Building, Hiranandani Business Park, other operating 

Powai Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra- income 

400076 

5 Seaview Developers IT/JTES SEZ, Candor TechSpace, Plot No 20 Naida Rental income BDd 731.09 724.27 1,455.36 505.36 505.36 
Private Limited 21, Sector 135, NOIDA. Uttar Pradesh- other operating 

201304 income 
6 Candor India Office F-83, Profit Centre, Gate No. 1, Mahavir Mumbai Property -

Parks Private Limited Nagar, Near Pizza Hut, Kandivali (W), management fees 
Mumbai-400067 

Total 3 036.02 2.910.40 2117.08 ~,946.42 4 460.02 4,307.89 8 767.91 

40 Earnini• Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amowits arc calculated by dividing the profit for the quarter/ period attributable to Unitholders by the weighted average nwnber of units outstanding during the quarter/ year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Unitholders by the weighted 

average nwnber of units outstanding during quaner /year plus the weighted average nwnber of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital The Units of the Trust were allotted on 08 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 24 January 2022. 

Particulan 

Profit after tax for calcuJating basic and diluted EPU 

Weighted average number of Units (Nos.) 
Earnings Per Unit 

-Basic (Rupees/unit) 

-Diluted (Rupees/unit)' 
• The Trust does not have any outstanding dilutive units. 

For the quarter 

ended 

30 September 2022 

267.12 

335,087,073 

0.80 

0.80 

For the quarter 

ended 
30 June 2022 

471.43 

335,087,073 

1.41 

1.41 

For the quarter 

ended 
30 September 2021 

682.82 

302,801,601 

2.25 

2.25 

For the half year 

ended 
30 September 2022 

738.55 

335,087,073 

2.20 

2.20 

For the half year 

ended 
31 March 2022 

1,041.69 

315,333,907 

3.30 

3.30 

For the half year 

ended 
30 September 1021 

1,421.16 

302,801,601 

4.69 

4.69 

For the year 

ended 
3 I March 2022 

2,462.85 

309,050,586 

7.97 

7.97 

~
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41 Capitalization Statement 
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development of the business. The Group's capital structure mainly constitutes equity in the form of unit capital and debt. 
The projects of SPY s are initially funded through construction financing arrangements. On completion, these loans are 
restructured into lease-rental discounting arrangements or debentures. The Group's capital structure is influenced by the changes 
in regulatory framework, government policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position. 

The Group monitors Capital using ratio of 'Net debt' to 'Gross asset value (GAV) of all SPYs. For this purpose, Net debt is 
defined as Long-term borrowings + Short-term borrowings + current maturities of long-term borrowings. The Group's adjusted 
Net debt to GAV ratio as at 30 September 2022 and 3 I March 2022 are as follows: 

Particulars As at 30 September 2022 As at 31 March 2022 

Borrowings 53,181.76 51,655.35 
Lease Liability 825.92 248.17 
Gross debt 54,007.68 51,903.52 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents (2,296.90) (2,043.65) 

Adjusted Net debt 51,710.78 49,859.87 

Unitholders' Funds 
-Unit capital 88,289.05 89,867.31 
-Other equity (2,145.12) (1,046.38) 
Total Shareholder's funds 86,143.93 88,820.93 

Debt/Equity Ratio 0.60 0.56 
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42 Related Party Disclosures 

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 30 September 2022 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pie Ltd- Sponsor 
Brookl)rop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited-Trustee 

The Ultimate parent entity, sponsor groups and fellow subsidiaries, with whom the grou1J has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities: 

Ultimate parent entity 
Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (BAM), ultimate parent entity and controlling party 

S1Jonsor 
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte Ltd- Sponsor 

Sponsor eroup 
a) BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd . (BSREP II India) 
b) Kairos Property Managers Private Limited (Kairos) 
c) BSREP Moen Cl L.P 
d) BSREP Moon C2 L.P 
e) BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pie Ltd. (BSREP India Office Ill) 
I) BS REP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. (BS REP India Holdings) 
g) BS REP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. (BS REP India Office IV) 
h) BS REP India Office Holdings VI Pie. Ltd. (BS REP India Office VI) 

Fellow subsidiaries 
a) Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 
b) Technology Service group LLC 
c) Arliga India Office Parks Private Limited 
d) Brookfield Property Group LLC 

Brookfield India REIT's interests in subsidiaries arc set out in note I"- Organization structure. 

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Manacemcnt Scn1ices Private Limited) 
Directors 
Alcila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) 
Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribha~1i (Independent Director) 
Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) 
Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director) 

Key management personnel of SPV's 
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech StruCCures Private Limited 

Subrata Ghosh- Managing Director 
Neeraj Kapoor- Company Secretary (till I st August 2021) 

- Festus Properties Private Limited 
Lalit Kumar- Company Secretary 

- Shantinikctan Properties Private Limited 
Kanika Dhingra - Company Secretary 

Key personnel 
Alok Aggarwal - Managing director and chief executive officer - India office business 
Sanjccv Kumar Shanna - Executive vice president and chief financial officer- India office business 
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H B. Rcl.11tcd rt ,· lransaclioru : 

Na lure or tunuclionf [nlitfs Name 

TTW"ltt Ftc [xpcnse 

-A-.is Tru~1L'\! St.-niccs Limitcd 

Rcimbuncmcnt or eipcn,c incurred b~· (exdudinJ: GSO 
- Drookprop ManagcmL-nl S..:nic~-s Pri\'alc Limit..:d 

- BSREP lndia Oflicc I loldings V ~c Ltd 
- UrooH1dd Property Group I.LC 

Rcimbuucmenl or upcnre incurred on l,ch.1.lr or (odudin~ GSl) 
- Mowit:iinstar India Onie.: P:irt;:s Pri\'atc Limilcd 

luuc or Unit C.tpila l 
- BSREI' !11di:1 Office I loldinJ,!s IV Pt.:. LtJ. 

lnlemel & Connccti,·icy 01arges 
- T,xhnolo~•y &·rvic.e Group LLC 

Property maruigement fees 
- Brookprop Mnna gcml.-nt &.,·vic~'S Pri\.ah: LimilL'J 

Jnnstmcnt management rcu 

- Brookprop Mana gcmcnl S.:r.ic~"S Pri\.atc Limittd 

Comptnution lo kc~· man as:emcnl pe r,onncl ofSPV's 
- Short-lcnn employee bcndits 

- Posl~mploymenl h .. -ndits • 
- Olhcr long-tcm1 lx.,1dits 
-Ol.herFl.-cs 

Pn1,·bion for Gratuity and compensated ab,enccs lransfc.r lo 
- Arliga India Office Park.-; flri\.a1c Limi!t:d 

Pn1,·iJion for G ratuilJ' and compcn,atcd JlbJcnccJ l ransfc r from 
- Mountaiml3r India Onie.: Parks Pri,·a1c Limi1cd 

Pro,·ision for Bonus t ram rer to 
- Arli ga India Office Parks Pri\.al.: Limit .. -.J 

Prol'it ion fo r Bonus tr;iin1rc r from 
- Mountainst.ar India Office Parks Pri\'atc LimiL.:d 

Rcpaymtnl of Unit Capib l 
- llSREP India Ollie.: 1-ioldings V l'tc. L1d. 
- BSllEP India Offict Holdings Ptc Ltd. 

- Kairos flrop,.:rty Managl.'TS l'\1. Lid . 

- BS REP Moon C I LP. 
- BSREP Moon Cl LP. 
- BSllEP II India Olliec Holdin g.~ II 1'1.c. Lid. 
- BSREI) lndi.a 01Tice I loldings Ill \'le. Ltd. 

- BSREP lnJia OfTict lloldings IV P'lt. LLd. 

lnlcrcst Distribulcd 
- DSREP lnJi.a Office I loldin gs V i'tt. LtJ . 
- BSREP India Offic.e Holdin gs Ph.: Ltd. 
- K:iiros Property M1nagl.'TS P\1. Ltd . 

- BSREI' Moon CI LP. 
- BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 

- BSREP II lndia Ollicc 1-!oldings ll l'tc. Lid. 
- 0SREP India OfJie(! Holdings Ill 11\c. 1.Ld 

- BSREI' India Offic.e I loldings IV l'te. Lid 

Other Income Dislrihulcd 
- DSREP India Ollie..: Holdings V Pte . Lid . 

- BSREI' India OClicc Holdings l'lc LtJ . 
- Kairos Property ManagL-rS r-.1. Ltd. 
- BSREI' Moon C l L.P. 
- BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 
- BSREP II InJia Onicc I loldin~ II !'ti:. L1J 
- BSREI' lnJia Oflicc I loldings Ill l'lc. Ltd. 

- BSREP India OOicc Ho\Jings IV l'tc. Ltd . 

Tou l 

Tota l 

Tolal 

T otal 

Total 

Total 

Tot;al 

ToUI 

Tolal 

Tota l 

Tota l 

Tolal 

Tola( 

Tota l 

Tola l 

Fortheqwrtcr For the qwrte r For the qwrtcr 
mded ended ended 

JO Scplcml>cr 2022 JO June 21122 JO Scplcmhcr 2021 

0 .74 0 ,74 0.74 
0.7~ 0.7~ 0.7~ 

0.22 0.56 1.89 
9.26 

(0 .34) 2.32 
(0. 12) 2.f!fl 11 .15 

0 . 10 0. 15 0.0..\ 
O.IO 0. 15 0.0-1 

7.62 6.80 3.54 
7.62 6.80 J .~ 

60. 19 57.6 1 45.44 
60.19 57.61 -15.,U 

20.26 20.32 24 .92 
20.26 20.32 2-1.92 

2.05 2.05 1.76 

0. 12 0. 12 0. 10 
0. 12 0 . 14 0. 11 
2.29 2.JI 1.97 

,i 

138.54 116.35 53 .09 
106.24 89.22 40.7 1 

8.67 7.28 3.J2 
2.05 1.72 0.79 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7 1. 90 60.39 27.55 
9-1 .02 78.% 36.03 

39.59 33 .25 
~61.01 387.17 161.~9 

132.59 154 .78 2-17.1 1 
101.67 118 .69 189.57 

8,30 9.69 15.'17 

1.96 2.29 J .66 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

68 .8 1 80.3) 128.JO 
89.98 IOS .04 167,77 
37.89 44 .23 

~~1.20 515.05 75 1.98 

4.87 4.87 24.4 1 
3.73 3.73 IS.72 
0 ,30 0,30 1. 53 
0,07 0.07 0.36 
0 .00 0.00 0.00 
2.5] 2.53 12 .67 
3.3 1 3.31 16.56 
1.39 1.39 

16. 20 16.20 7-1.25 

For the h;ii lr ycar For lhc half , ·ca r For the halrycu· For the year 
ended ended c.ndcd ended 

JO Scpteml>c r 2022 JI l\farch 2022 JO Scpleml>c r 2021 J I l\brd,2022 

1.48 1.47 1.48 2.95 
IA8 IA7 l.~8 2.95 

0.78 3.05 2.69 5.14 
1. 22 25 . 17 26.39 

1.98 
2.76 ~.27 27.H6 32. 13 

0.25 2,31 0.50 2.81 
0.25 2.JI 0.50 2.81 

4.550.17 4.550. 17 
~ .. "i50. 17 -1.550.17 

14.42 10 .40 6.67 17 .07 
I..\.U I0A0 6.67 17.07 

11 7.80 95 .35 91.34 186 .69 
117.flO 95.35 91.l -l lli6.69 

40,58 35.JO 45 .91 81.21 
~0.58 JS.JO ~5.9 1 81.2 1 

4.10 4.90 3.67 8.57 

0.24 0.22 0.21 0.43 
0 .26 0.27 0.22 0.49 
~.60 5.39 ~-10 9A9 

0 .29 0.29 
0.29 0.29 

5.67 5.67 
5.67 5.67 

0.23 0.23 
0.2J 0.23 

7.54 7.54 
7.5-1 7.S-1 

254 .89 19.1.29 53 .09 2<17.38 
195.46 148.98 40.71 189.69 

15 .95 12. 17 3.32 15.49 
3.77 2.87 0.79 3.66 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

132.29 100.84 27 .55 128.]9 

172.98 IJU!5 36.03 167 .88 
72.8-1 

8-18. IH 591.00 161.~9 75U9 

287.37 387.49 247.21 634.70 

220.36 297 . 1-1 189 .57 486.71 
17.9') 24 .25 15.47 39.72 
4.25 5.74 3.66 9.40 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

149 . 14 201.IO 128 .JO 329.40 
195 .02 262 .97 167 .77 430.74 

82. 12 
956.25 1,178.69 751 .98 1,930.67 

').74 13 .53 24A l 37 .94 
7.46 10.37 Ul.72 29.09 
0.60 O.S5 1.53 2.38 
0 . 14 0.20 0.36 0.56 
0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 
5.06 7.02 12 .67 19.69 
6.62 9.18 16.56 25.7-1 
2.78 

32 .. IO -U.15 7~.25 115.~0 
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.U 8. Rcbled art,· l ranuctionJ : 

Natu~ of lranuclion/ [nlily', Name 

Security depo,i l r-eccind b.,ck 

- Mountain star India Olli~ !'arks l'ri\'alc Limited 

Income ,upport rcccind 

Mounlainstar India Ollicc Parks l'ri\·ai.: l.imih:d 

Income ,upport rccci,·cd in ad,·ance 

Mountainst.1r India Offic.: !'arks l'ri\·a1c Limiled 

Total 

Total 

Total 

For 1hc qu., rtcr For the quarter For the quarter 
endcd ended ended 

JO Stptcmbc.-r 2022 JO J une 2022 JO Stptembtr 202l 

179. 12 177.66 

179.12 177.66 

ltJ .90 
19,90 

Fo r the half ~·car For the halfyur For Che lulf~·ear For lhc year 
ended ended ended cndtd 

30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 Scpttmbc r 2021 JI Ma rch 2022 

7.43 7.43 
7.H 7AJ 

3:56.78 228 .14 228. 14 
J56,7H 228.U 228.14 

ltJ.90 
19.90 

•As the liabilities for the gratuity and comrcns.11L-J al~nccs arc prmidcdon an aclu.:irial h:isis, andcalculaled for the respccti\'e SPV as a whole, lhc said liabilities pertaining sp,.x:ifically to KMP arc not kn01m for current rcriod and hence. not includ.:d her.: . 

Oubtand ing ba lanceJ 

Trade Pap hie (net ofwilliholdln~ tax) 
- 0rookprop Managi.."tncnt Sen.ices l'ri\.ite Limik-J 

Prepaid cipcmer 

- Axis Truskc Scn.ic.:s Lid 

Othcrrcceh·ahlcs 
• Mountains tar lndi:J Ollicc Parks Privale Limit.:d 

Fin.111Ke rccei\·able,* 
- Mountainstar lndi:J om~ Parks Prin!c Limit.:d 

Other Payable 
• Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 

Vendor Ad,·ancc-Othcn (ncl of wilhho lclin~ tu) 

- Technology 5(.,-,.ic.: ip-oup LLC 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Tot.al 

Tola! 

Tot.al 

Ali.al Al.II 

30 Scpltmbcr 2022 JI March 2022 

18.:54 
IH.~ 

1.47 
l.-t7 

0.02 
0.02 

86:5.44 
865.-1-1 

19.90 
19.90 

16.8.:1 
16JU 

0.01 
0.01 

1.162. 13 
1, 162.13 

3. 17 
J.17 

•Represents incom.: ~upport pro1·ided by Mounlainslar India Ofliix (•arks Pri\':llC l.imilcd lo SDPL Noida as part of Income support :J g_ru:mcnt st:Jrting quarter ended JI March 2022 until lhc l1uart1..T ending 31 March 2024 
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43 Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to cause disruption to business activities as well as disrupted travel and adversely impacted local , regional, national and international economic 
conditions. Brookfield India REIT has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COYID-19 on the carrying amounts and fair value of investment property 
(including under development). As a result, future revenues and cash flows produced by investment properties could be potentially impacted due to this prevailing uncertainty. ln 
response, Brookfield India REIT has adjusted cash flow assumptions for its estimate of near-term disruption to cash flows to reflect collections, vacancy and assumptions with respect to 
new leasing activity. In addition, Brookfield India RE[T has continued to assess the appropriateness of the discount and terminal capitalization rates giving consideration to changes to 
property level cash flows and any risk premium inherent in such cash flow changes as well as the current cost of capital and credit spreads. Further, in developing assumptions relating to 
possible future uncertainties in the Indian economic conditioris because of this pandemic; Brookfield India REIT, as at the date of approval of these Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements, has used internal and external sources of information including reports on fair valuation of investment properties from property consultants, economic forecast and other 
information from market sources on the expected future performance of Brookfield lndia RElT. Based on this analysis, Brookfield India RE[T has concluded that there is no impairment to 
the carrying amount of investment property and the fair value of investment property disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements represents the best estimate based on 
internal and external sources of information on the reporting date. 
The impact of COVID-19 on Brookfield lndia RElT Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

44 Assets Acquisition 

(i) On 8 February 2021 (the acquisition date), Brookfield India RE[T acquired 100% of the equity interest and compulsorily convertible debentures of four SPVs as described in more 
detail in Note I - Organization structure; in exchange for units of Brookfield India REIT amounting to Rs. 45,270.45 Million (the "Purchase consideration"). 
The management applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair 
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
The management identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets 
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquis ition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the four SPYs as at the date of acquisition were: 

Assets Amount (in million) 
Prooertv, olant and eauioment 98.22 
Investment property 100,378.03 
Investment property under development 723.34 

Other assets 6,848.43 

Total Assets (A) 108,048,02 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 56,776.42 

Other liabilities 6,001.16 

Total Liabilities (B) 62,777,58 

Net Assets (A- B) 45,270,44 

(ii) On 24 January 2022 (the acquisition date), Brookfield lndia REIT acquired 100% of the equity interest and compulsorily convertible debentures of SDPL Naida as described in more 
detail in Note I -Organization structure; in exchange through combination of units of Brookfield India REIT of Rs. 4,550.17 million and cash consideration of Rs. 13,153.83 million, total 
amounting to Rs. 17,704.00 million. Brookfield lndia RE[T has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition, amounting to Rs. 118.22 million, resulting 
in the total purchase consideration of Rs. 17,822.22 million (the "Purchase consideration"). 
The management applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair 
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
The management identified and rCCOb'11ized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets 

and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquisition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SDPL Naida as at the date of acquisition were : 

Assets Amount (in million) 
Property, plant and equipment 29.3[ 

lnvestment property 35,344.03 

[nvestment orooertv under develonment 1,110.75 

Other assets 3,699.40 

Total Assets (A) 40,183.49 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities oflong term borrowings) 20,464.86 

Other liabilities 1,896.41 

Total Liabilities (B) 22,361,27 

Net Assets (A- B) 17,822,22 
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45 Management fee 

Property Management Fees 
Pursuant to the Candor Amended and Restated Service Agreement dated 01 December 2020 with SPPL Noida and Candor Kolkata and agreement dated 11 February 2022 with SDPL 
Noida, Investment Manager is entitled to a yearly fees @ 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the books of accounts of SPPL Noida, Candor Kolkata and SDPL 
Noida, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services to CIOP in relation to the Operational Services 
rendered by it with respect to SPPL Noida, Candor Kolkata and SDPL Noida. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 47.07 
million and Rs. 92.94 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager. 

Pursuant to the Festus Service Agreement dated O I December 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to a yearly fee of 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the 
books of accounts of Festus, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services to Festus in relation to the 
management and operation of the Kensington and any other properties developed by Festus from time to time ("Festus Properties"). The said Management fees for the quarter and half year 
ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 13.12 million and Rs. 24.86 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the 
Manager. 

REIT Management Fees 
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ I% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 48). The fees 
has been determined for undertaking management of the REIT and its investments. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 
20.26 million and Rs. 40 .58 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager. 

46 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited ("Candor Kolkata"), Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ("SPPL Noida") and Seaview Developers Private Limited ("SDPL 
Naida"), which became subsidiary of Brookfield India REIT after it was acquired by it in February 2021, February 2021 and January 2022 respectively, had received certain amounts as 
share application money ("Share Application Money") prior to 31 March 2014, against which Candor Kolkata had not allotted shares; SPPL Noida and SDPL Noida had not allotted 
shares or refunded such Share Application Money. The segregation and maintenance of such Share Application Money in a separate bank account, and the utilization of such Share 
Application Money for general corporate purposes, was not in accordance with Para1,,,-aph 8(4) of the Unlisted Public Companies (Preferential Allotment) Amendment Rules, 2011 (the 
Rules). During the period ended 31 March 2021, these subsidiaries had filed application u/s 441 of the Companies Act, 2013 for compounding of offence. 

Pursuant to the hearing held on 30 December, 2021, Hon'ble Regional Director accepted the compounding application(s) filed by Candor Kolkata, SPPL Naida and SDPL Naida 
compounded the offence by levying a compounding fees, amounting to Rs. 0.40 million for Candor Kolkata, Rs. 1.05 million for SPPL Naida and Rs. 0.51 million for SDPL Naida, and 
passed the order dated 25 January 2022, 24 January 2022 and 24 January 2022 for Candor Kolkata, SPPL Naida and SDPL Noida, respectively. The said compounding fees has been paid 
by the respective subsidiaries within the requisite timelines during the year ended 31 March 2022. 
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47 Details of utilization of proceeds of IPO are as follows: 

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus 

Partial or full pre-payment or scheduled repayment of the 
existing indebtedness of our Asset SPVs 
General purposes (refer note below) 

Issue expenses (refer note below) 

Total 

Proposed utilization Actual utilization upto 
31 March 2022 

35,750.00 35,750.00 

350.00 672.45 
1,900.00 1,577.55 

38,000.00 38,000.00 

Note: Amount of Rs. 322.45 million has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards issue 
expenses. 

48 Distribution Policy 

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to 
be distributed to Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal 
loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from our Asset SPVs/ CIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of 
investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or 
in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable laws. 

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT ("REIT Distributions") shall be declared and made once every quarter of a 
Financial Year by our Manager. The first distribution shall be made upon completion of the first full quarter after the listing 
of our Units on the Stock Exchanges. Further, in accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made no 
later than 15 days from the date of such declarations . The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees. 

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines issued 
thereunder including the SEBI Guidelines. 

0 0 1<.fie/O' 
~ 
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49 a) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2022 are the derived figures between the unaudited figures in respect of the 
half year ended 30 September 2022 and the unaudited published figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2022, which were both 
subject to limited review. 

b) The figures for the half year ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year 
ended 31 March 2022 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto 30 September 2021 which were subject to limited 
review. 

50 "0.00" Represents value less than Rs. 0.01 million. 

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REin 

~~---
Ankur Gupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

A.lok Aggarwal 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 
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